














































\ 

TOWN OF GROVELAND 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

r □ WN OF GROVEL~/·/; 

iW 11AY,-5: AM JO: I:; (;}j 
TAX CULLLCTOR 

II II II Ill I Ill I IIIIIIIIIIIII I 111111111111111111 
SO.ESSEX #366 Bk:35927 Pg:570 
06/08/2017 03:19 PM OCSN Pg f/9 
eRecorded 

SPECIAL PERMIT DECISION UNDER SECTION 6 OF THE MASSACHUSETTS 
ZONING ACT AND SECTION 106 OF THE GROVELAND ZONING BYLAWS 

APPLICATION #2017"1 

YOU ARE HEREBY notified of the Decision of the Board of Appeals on the application made 
by Eric W. Harper, Trustee of Esty Park Trust (the "Petitioner'') for property owned by the Trust 
located at 441 Main Street, Groveland, Massachusetts Assessors Plat# 24 Lots # 8 and #9 (the 
"Property"). • 

Application# 2017-1 was filed with the Board on February 10, 2017 as signified by the Town 
Clerk's date stamp. A revised site plan, referenced below and attached hereto, was submitted to 
the Zoning Board on March 22, 2017. 

The Board, as authorized by Section 15 of Chapter 40A of the Massachusetts General Laws, 
heard the application of Petitioner at a public hearing conducted on March 1 2017, April 5, 2017 
and May 3, 2017. 

Notice of such public hearing was given by Town Hall posting, newspaper publication and 
certified mail to all parties in interest as defined in Section 11 of Chapter 40A of the 
Massachusetts General Laws. 

Moved by Kathleen Franson, seconded by Jason Norman, the Board voted 3-0 to issue the 
decision set forth below. 

The Board makes the following findings in connection with this Decision: 

A. The Property has been improved and used for commercial and industrial uses since the 
early 1900s. In 1954, the Town of Groveland adopted zoning and placed the Property 
within a residential zoning district. As a result, the business located on the Property 
(Esty's saw mill, lumber yard and hardware store) became a pre-existing non-conforming 
use. 

B. Historically, Esty's use of the Property included the following: wholesale and retail sales; 
milling of lumber and manufacture of wood products; fabrication of doors and windows; 
office and administrative services; accessory repair of motor vehicles and heavy 



equipment; open and enclosed storage of building supplies; and warehousing of products 
for pickup by and delivery to customers (collectively, the "Historic Uses"). 

C. Since purchasing the Property in 2013, the Petitioner has been engaged in its 
rehabilitation for adaptive commercial usage. Previously, the Board reviewed and 
approved Phase 1 of the Petitioner's project including the buildings located in the 
southwestern portion of the Property. The present application is for Phase 2 of the 
Petitioner's project, including the buildings proposed for the northeastern portion of the 
Property. 

D. Phase 2 consists of three new buildings totaling 17,400 sf of space. Together, Phase 1 
and Phase 2 total 87,280 sf of space. 

E. As proposed by the Petitioner, Phase 2 is separated into two segments: a "front segment" 
located along Main Street to be used for office purposes; a ••rear segment" located behind 
security fencing to be used for "small business support storage" as defined below 
(collectively, the "Proposed Uses"). 

Small business support storage means the care and keeping of equipment, 
supplies, materials, tools, machines and vehicles owned by persons involved in 
small businesses and customarily used in the operation of those businesses who 
periodically pick-up and drop-off stored items for use at sites located off the 
Property. By way of example, small business support storage serves those in the 
construction trades who customarily maintain a place for the keeping of supplies 
and materials that are used in their work at job sites located elsewhere. The 
"care" of vehicles may include regular maintenance (such as adding fluids and 
checking tire pressures) but shall exclude major repairs and body work. 

F. The Proposed Uses represent an alteration or extension of the Historic Uses which the 
Board may allow upon a finding that the former are not substantially more detrimental 
than the latter to the neighborhood, all as provided under G .L. Chapter 40A, Section 6 
and Section 106 of the Zoning Bylaw. 

G. The neighborhood of concern in connection with Phase 2 is a residential subdivision on 
Wharf Drive and Wharf Lane abutting the northeast side of the Property and the 
residential area along Main Street. The Board finds that the Petitioner's project will not 
increase any adverse effects on this neighborhood for the following reasons: 

1. The Proposed Uses will eliminate all heavy industrial activities; 

n. Unlike the Historic Uses, the Proposed Uses will not involve public access and 
retail sales on the rear segment of the Property; 

111. The Proposed Uses are generally quiet and compatible with the adjoining 
residential neighborhood; 

2 



1v. The proposed project includes substantial site improvements including a 
landscaped buffer along the northeast perimeter of the Property, all of which serve 
to protect and enhance adjoining residential properties; and 

v. All public testimony received by the Board, including all comments from 
residential neighbors, has been favorable to and supportive of the Petitioner's 
project. 

H. Accordingly, the Board hereby finds that the Proposed Uses will not be substantially 
more detrimental to the neighborhood and hereby approves the same pursuant to G.L. 
Chapter 40A, Section 6 and Section I 06 of the Zoning Bylaw. 

The Board's approval of Petitioner's proposal is subject to the following conditions considered 
to be reasonable and appropriate under the circumstances: 

1. Hours of Operation. 

a) Business operations at the Property will be limited to Monday through Saturday, from 
6:30 a.m.to 7:00 p.m. 

b) No business operations may be conducted on Sunday or on any Federal Holiday 
including: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Thanksgiving Day and 
Christmas Day. 

c) The Petitioner will furnish all tenants a written directive stating that pick-up and 
drop-off activity is strictly prohibited outside the permitted days and times of 
operation noted above. 

d) The Applicant will promptly address any neighbor complaint directly with that 
neighbor and, if unsuccessful in reaching a resolution, will work with the building 
inspector to resolve the complaint. 

2. Scope of Use. 

a) The front building (B-116) will be used for office and/or small business support 
storage as defined in the Groveland Zoning Bylaw and as defined above in this 
Decision. Any small business support storage use in B-116 shall be accessed from 
the rear segment, behind the fence, and no overhead doors shall be visible from Main 
Street. 

b) The rear buildings (B-11 7 and B-118) will be used for small business support storage 
as defined above in this Decision. 

3 



c) Accessory uses will be limited to activities that are subordinate to the primary use and 
otherwise meet the definition of"Accessory Use" in Appendix B of the Town's 
Zoning Bylaws.1 

1. Open storage accessory to small business support tenants will be limited to bulk 
items that are typically kept outdoors, provided that such items (i) are customarily 
part of a business occupying building space on the Property, (ii) are arranged in a 
neat and orderly manner, (iii) are confined to paved areas located in the rear 
segment of the Property, and (iv) are screened from the view of abutting 
properties and public ways. 

11. Fabrication and like processes accessory to small business support storage will be 
limited to activities that (i) occur indoors, (ii) cannot be seen or heard from 
outside the Property, and (iii) comply with the "zero impact" standards set forth in 
the definition of"Light Industry" as appearing in Appendix B of the Town's 
Zoning Bylaws. 2 

3. Access and Par.Icing. 

a) Access to the rear segment of the Property will be gate controlled and limited to the 
businesses that occupy building space at the Property. 

b) There will be no on-street parking along Main Street. Parking for vehicles on the 
Property will be provided by the spaces shown on the Site Plan. 

c) fu addition to the driveway openings onto Main Street, the Petitioner will retain an 
open corridor enabling secondary emergency access through a gate from the cul-de
sac at the end of Wharf Lane which shall not be used for general access by tenants or 
the public. 

4. Lighting. 

a) Area-wide lighting will be limited to fixtures cut to illuminate in a downward 
direction. 

b) Localized lighting will be placed on the sidewall of buildings as necessary to 
illuminate doorway entry areas. 

c) No lighting will be placed on the back side of buildings facing Wharf Drive or Wharf 
Lane. 

1 Accessory use or building. Use or building customarily incident to and located on the same lot with the use or 
building to which it is accessory and not detrimental to the neighborhood. 

2 Light industry. Fabrication, processing, or assembly employing only electric or other substantially noiseless and 
inoffensive motive power, utilizing hand labor or quiet machinery and processes, and free from neighborhood 
disturbing agents, such as odors, gas fumes, smoke, cinders, flashing or excessively bright lights, refuse matter, 
electromagnetic radiation, heat or vibration. 

4 



5. Landscaping. 

a) Phase 2 will include additional landscaping as shown on the Site Plan and shall be 
installed prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for building B-116. 

b) The extended berm will be planted with a mix of evergreen trees that match the 
existing berm. 

6. Signage. 

a) All new signs shall be permitted in accordance with the Groveland Zoning Bylaws. 

b) Each building will have one sign that identifies the building number. 

7. Related Zoning Relief. 

a) Petitioner's project (Phases 1 and 2) received Site Plan Approval and an Aquifer 
Protection Special Permit from the Planning Board under a Decision dated July 7, 
2015, filed with the Town Clerk on July 9, 2015. A minor modification to the Site 
Plan was approved by the Planning Board on March 7, 2017. 

b) To avoid redundancy, eliminate conflict and ensure consistency among zoning 
decisions, all provisions of the Planning Board's Site Plan Approval and Special 
Permit are incorporated herein and made a part of this Decision. 

8. Recording. 

a) The Petitioner will record this Decision at the Registry of Deeds upon issuance of a 
certificate by the Town Clerk stating that no appeal has been filed within the time 
required for filing such appeals, or that such appeal has been withdrawn, denied or 
dismissed. 

b) A copy of the recorded Decision will be furnished to the Board, the Town Clerk and 
Building Commissioner prior to the issuance of any building permit in connection 
with Phase 2. 

Site Plan: Sheet 1 of2 titled "Estys Park, 441 Main Street, Groveland MA, Site Plan~ Phase I", 
first dated May 13, 2015, last revised March 6, 2017, scale 1 inch equals 50 feet, prepared by 
Marchionda & Associates, LP, signed and stamped by Paul A. Marchionda Registered 
Professional Engineer on March 6, 2017, endorsed as approved by the Groveland Planning 
Board on March 7, 2017; Sheet 2 of2 titled "Estys Park, 441 Main Street, Groveland MA, Site 
Plan - Phase 2", first dated May 13, 2015, last revised March 6, 2017, scale 1 inch equals 50 feet, 
prepared by Marchionda & Associates, LP, signed and stamped by Paul A. Marchionda 
Registered Professional Engineer on March 6, 2017, endorsed as approved by the Groveland 
Planning Board on March 7, 2017. A reduced copy of the Site Plan is attached hereto as Exhibit 
A. 

Vote on the Motion to approve this Decision: YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 

5 



CHAIR (Katherine C. Bailey) - Yes 

MEMBER (Kathleen Franson)- Yes 

MEMBER (Daniel McDonald) - Absent (Recused) 

.MEMBER (Jason Norman) - Yes 

Any Appeal of this Decision shall be made pursuant to Section 17 of Chapter 40A and shall be 
filed with the Superior or District Court within twenty (20) days after the date of filing of the 
above cited Decision with the office of the Town Clerk. Procedural appeals shall be taken in 
accordance with Section 1 7 of Chapter 40A. 

~e~ Date 1 

Record of evidence, findings of fact and detailed record of the proceedings of the Board of 
Appeals (if any as filed with the Town Clerk) are incorporated herein by reference and 
considered a part hereof 

6 



• I 

I 
i 
' 

I 
-/ 
/1 ' 
-rm· . ·-~--. --
/ c ··-.,,..,. ..... 

J r-; 

Pl 

u 

I 
8 

. 
t. ..,::,,. •• 

• c~>-

' ~~t 
• 'C'~ ' ,.' 

~q, ' ,, 

~; ~-=--- <'1> \ ;., --·"~•-.. r·- ,_,_-
~ .. 

/ 

I i I • • ·\, :_. ,,,'5;.~ 

I ~ I 1 •~?it<i, I ~ I -· ~ "t?,:~ 
1--. ~!\", I l ""'q.<Z-
:, ~ I i-.,\,.,. 

q, 

. n~@-tr~ ■31:: 
ESlYS PAIi!( - .... 

L 4-4 I MAIN G'Tl\l;E,T 

; i. ~lii•-fg_ m 
a! • _ M -:11 ... 

'l~'i~ : Jf .. n 
SITE PLAN - PHASE 1 . 

. n ll" :c~~ t • J=- GROVEi.AND, MA 
0 !f ~-& f 1 0 P1~adrcr :p ~ i;::::, 

I -""""" 
ESTY PARK l!IUSINESfl A550CIA.nON 1 O'l&.-:ii • ~ll.&lOJf 

a i ~ . CL 
8 FEDERAi. WAY 

I ~JKI. COIAIO•i'tS 

a m ...:.Ol"IL\2.1~'' 

~ GROVEi.AND. MA 0183<1 t::,,f2A.T•n, CDN(.U1~ .. ««Ni~ 

\ 

\ 
\!~ 

.----~;,. 

APPRO\'Ol er lHE G>!O~D ftl!:01STll'1' UQE 01«.Y 
?l.ANl~HG BOARO 

UNDO! lHE zo,;;; BY -LAIi' 
n'. ~~tl APl'RO\/Al.. 5!:CTION 
~OOil'tR PliOlttnOti DISTRICT 

51:Cl'lCtl 1700 

~1Z~ 
"'"' ,,,,,. f,,t,. ,,,,c,/f."'-

""'" '""' ,,..,. ... 



' . . . - I\ :-l / 

/ff 

/J 
11 

Im 
j ( 
er l m· I q k 

I, 

... -

I I l , ' I 
I ----; ----..: ______ ~-- ----~--

~ 

I 
I 

~ 

' 

ll 

! 
" 

I 
I 
I 

!. I 
I b I 
, J I 

I i I 
t 

' ' ' ,'-

,, 

::if - -=--- 7'-MiU, . / 
I /1· ··1, ·--f ""'·- . . . (,.• ._,_, , I , . _ -, -... · \. 

/
1 I -'f':: '-~ -

1 I 0 ~ 

I I(.~~ i ·,_ :\.'\,. 
~ It I I ., 

'-:,~ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

... .. , .. 

;;; 
~-- - - -----1--., 

~ -----i-:-

~,~! ~~ij I ~~ a-~ 
!!~~l'l3L N 

a 
a ~ 

:z , ziu:u:~~1 z a (j) ~ ',.:-~;:);::~:;::~ m 

~ ~ 
al 
i 

~ u Ii u ~ 

I m i;;:. i't:: a~ i: 
I!] .. 11 ! ~:i;i ~:: 

:" ~ :" ,. ~ 



TOWN OF GROVELAND 

Notice of Appeal or Not 

for Decision Made by Groveland Zoning Board 

Office of the Town Clerk 
183 MafnSt 

Groveland~ ivlA. 
Tel- 978--469-5005 

Anne Brodie 

I hearby certify that a copy of the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of Groveland, 

.relatl~g to the applic~tlon of: LJ.~ Ct:.::;._..-..J-tdfJ___:.-.:....;.e_=p~€~R.~· ----·---=-----

__ '-/_·.-"--(! / m /-) 1 A_) ~r 
File number: ci>/21 2 - / 
Was flied In this office an : {Y)f) Y ,{ CJ{)/ 7 ; 

And that NO NOTICE OF APPEAL was flied during the Twenty {20) d·ays after the date. 

It is strongly tJrged that this decision be flied at the registry of Deeds as It will affect your property and 
the status of your property deed. Should you file this document, we ask that you bring a copy of the file 
number back to the office of the Town Clerk, so that It may be filed with your original document. Thank 
Voul / 

Original decision has been picked up by applicant, and or his agent, from the Town Clerk of Groveland. 



Town of Groveland 
Economic Development 

Planning & Conservation Department 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

  

441 Main Street 

Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 

DECISION FOR A MODIFICATION OF  

SPECIAL PERMIT #2014-4 

441 MAIN STREET 

 

PETITIONER: Esty Park Trust, 

Eric Harper Trustee 

8 Federal Way, 

Groveland MA 

 

DATE: XX, XXX, XXXX 

ADDRESS: 441 Main Street 

Groveland, MA 

24-009-0 

HEARING: May 1, 2024, June 5, 2024, 

July 10, 2024 

 

YOU ARE HEREBY notified of the Decision of the Board of Appeals on the application made 

by Esty Park Trust, Eric Harper Trustee (the “Applicant”) for property owned by the Applicant, 

located at 441 Main Street, Groveland MA, Assessors Map 24 Lot 009, located in the Residential 

2 (R-2) Zoning District (the “Property”). 

As set forth in the application filed with the Board and testimony given at the public hearing, the 

Applicant sought a Special Permit pursuant to MGL 40A and the Groveland Zoning Bylaws 

Section 14.6 and Section 5.6 to modify Special Permit #2014-4 to add an additional building on 

the property. 

The application was filed on April 8, 2024, and notice of such public hearing was given by 

posting in Town Hall, publication in the Eagle Tribune on April 17, 2024, and April 24, 2024, 

and by certified mail return receipt to all parties-in-interest as defined in MGL Chapter 40A 

Section 11. 

The Board, as authorized by the Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 14.4, heard Application 

#2024-6 at a public hearing on May 1, 2024, June 5, 2024, and July 10, 2024 at the Groveland 

Town Hall. 

The following members were present at the hearing: Chris Goodwin, John Stokes II, John 

Grohol, Jason Naves. 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

Commented [AS1]: Rebecca - Curious as to your thoughts 
on whether or not we should have it listed as a modification 
with 2014-4 or as a new permit 2024-6? 

Commented [AS2]: BOARD - Please review the 2017-1 
Permit (in your meeting packet) it is where I pulled some of 
the conditions  



 
 

 

441 Main Street 
Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 2 of 8 

The Board is providing a comprehensive Procedural History with this permit due to the long and 

complicated nature of this site. It is the Board’s goal to provide a more seamless process for 

future Board’s dealing with this site.  

A. This Property was a lumber sawmill, lumber yard, and hardware store dating back to the 

early 1900s. In 1954, the Town adopted zoning and the Property was zoned residential 

district, making this property a pre-existing non-conforming use. The business was called 

Esty Lumber Yard.  

B. Historically, Esty Lumber Yard’s use of the property included the following: wholesale 

and retail sales’ milling of lumber and manufacturing of wood products; fabrication of 

doors and windows; office administrative services; accessory repair of moto vehicles and 

heavy equipment; open and enclosed storage of building supplies; and warehousing of 

products for pickup by and delivery to customers.  

C. Since purchasing the Property in 2013, the Applicant has been engaged in its 

rehabilitation for adaptive commercial use. In 2014 the Board reviewed and approved 

Phase I of the Applicant’s project including the buildings located in the southwestern 

portion of the Property. 

D. The Board issued a decision, 2017-1, for Phase II which consisted of three new buildings 

totaling 17,400 sqft of space. Phase II was not constructed.  

E. The “Proposed Uses” is defined as: 

a. Small business support storage means the care and keeping of equipment, 

supplies, materials, tools, machines and vehicles owned by persons involved in 

small businesses and customarily used in the operation of those businesses who 

periodically pick-up and drop-off stored items for use at sites located off the 

Property. By way of example, small business support storage services those in the 

construction trades who customarily maintain a place for the keeping of supplies 

and martials that are used in their work at job sites located elsewhere. The “care” 

of vehicles may include regular maintenance (such as adding fluids and checking 

tire pressures) but shall exclude major repairs and body work.  

F. The Proposed Use represents an alternation or extension of the Historic Uses which the 

Board may allow upon a finding that the former are not substantially more detrimental 

than the latter to the neighborhood, as provided until MGL Chapter 40A Section 6 and 

Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 5.4. This was more recently approved in Special Permit 

#2017-1, Book 35927 Page 570. Much of the above history of the site came from that 

Special Permit.  

G. This property was also issued other permits throughout the site’s history: 

1982 – Variance to construct two new buildings for the storage of lumber and building 

materials. Book 6991 Page 250. 

1985 – Special Permit to construct a new sawmill building. Book 7857 Page 356. 

Commented [AS3]: Ask Jay Ogden to confirm 



 
 

 

441 Main Street 
Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 3 of 8 

#2014-4 – Special Permit to allow the property to become Esty Business Park 

Association to be utilized for small business support storage. Book 33242 Page 85. 

#2014-4 Amendment – Amendment to the original #2014-4 Special Permit per 

stipulation #13 which reads that the “Special permit is subject to recall if the Board 

receives any written complaints”. This decision was not recorded at the Registry of 

Deeds.  

#2014-12 – Special Permit to elucidate and define the parameters of the business model 

for the site. This application was withdrawn with prejudice. 

#2016-7 – Decision for the appeal of the Building Inspector. The Board overturned the 

Building Inspector’s decision with regards to the setback from the side lot line on the 

grounds that the applicant has asserted ownership to the centerline of the adjacent right-

of-way. This decision was not recorded at the Registry of Deeds. 

#2016-8 – Finding of Fact for the expansion of the pre-existing non-conforming use, 

specifically regarding Building 105. This was voided by Land Court. Book 35927 Page 

568. 

H. In the 2017 decision they specifically talk about neighbor concerns, which we didn’t 

really have here. 

FINDINGS 

The Board makes the following findings in connection with this Decision, which references the 

criteria for the granting of a Special Permit in the Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 14.6(A) and 

Section 5-6 for Nonconforming Uses.  

Special Permit Findings: 

(1) Social, economic, or community needs which are served by the proposal. 

 

The Board finds that …  

 

(2) Traffic flow and safety, including parking and loading. 

 

The Board finds that …  

 

(3) Adequacy of utilities and other public services. 

The Board finds that … 

(4) Neighborhood character and social structures. 

 

The Board finds that … 

Commented [AS4]: I’m not sure if this was appealed or 
not, hoping Jay can clarify.  

Commented [AS5]: Jay - can he confirm this? 

Commented [AS6]: Board should discuss whether or not 
they want to add this.  



 
 

 

441 Main Street 
Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 4 of 8 

  

(5) Impacts on the natural environment. 

 

The Board finds that … 

 

(6) Potential fiscal impact, including impact on Town services, tax base, and 

employment. 

 

The Board finds that … 

 

(7) Consistency with the Town of Groveland Community Development Plan or the Town 

of Groveland Master Plan. 

The Board finds that … 

Nonconforming Uses Findings: 

(1) The change or extension shall not be substantially more detrimental than the existing 

nonconforming use to the neighborhood. 

 

The Board finds that …  

For the reasons stated above, the Board finds that the application meets the criteria for granting a 

Special Permit.  

CONDITIONS 

1. Use of the Property as authorized hereunder is for a “XXX”, as defined by the Groveland 

Zoning Bylaw Section 2.1. 

Hours of Operation 

2. The hours of operation shall be Monday through Saturday from 6:30 am to 7:00 pm. 

a. No business operations may be conducted on Sunday or on any Federal Holiday 

including: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, Fourth of July, 

Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. 

b. The Applicant will furnish all tenants a written directive stating that pick-up and 

drop-off activity is strictly prohibited outside the permitted days and times of 

operation noted above. 

3. The Applicant will promptly address any neighbor complaint directly with that neighbor 

and, if unsuccessful in reaching a resolution, will work with the Building Inspector to 

resolve the complaint.  

Commented [AS7]: Doesn’t really apply here 

Commented [AS8]: This was not in the 2017 permit, add? 



 
 

 

441 Main Street 
Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 5 of 8 

Scope of Use 

4. The front building (B-116) will be used for office and/or small business support storage 

as defined above in this Decision. Any small business support storage use in B-116 shall 

be accessed from the rear segment, behind the fence, and no overhead doors shall be 

visible from Main Street.  

 

5. The rear buildings (B-117 and B-118) will be used for small business support storage as 

defined above in this Decision.  

 

6. Accessory uses will be limited to activities that are subordinate to the primary use and 

otherwise meet the definition of “Accessory Use” in the Groveland Zoning Bylaws 

Section 2.1.  

 

a. Open storage accessory to small business support tenants will be limited to bulk 

items that are typically kept outdoors, provided that such items (i) are customarily 

part of a business occupying building space on the Property, (ii) are arranged in a 

neat and orderly manner, (iii) are confined to paved areas located in the rear 

segment of the Property, and (iv) are screened from the view of abutting 

properties and public ways. 

b. Fabrication and like processes accessory to small business support storage will be 

limited to activities that (i) occur indoors, (ii) cannot be seen or heard from 

outside the Property, and (iii) comply with the "zero impact" standards set forth in 

the definition of "Light Industry" as appearing in Appendix B of the Town's 

Zoning Bylaws. 

Access and Parking 

7. Access to the rear segment of the Property will be gate controlled and limited to the 

businesses that occupy the building space at the Property.  

 

8. There will be no on-street parking along Main Street. Parking for vehicles on the 

Property will be provided by the spaces shown on the Site Plan. 

 

9. In addition to the driveway openings onto Main Street, the Applicant will retain an open 

corridor enabling secondary emergency access through a gate from the cul-de-sac at the 

end of Wharf Lane which shall no be used for general access by tenants or the public.  

 

Lighting 

10. Area-wide lighting will be limited to fixtures cut to illuminate in a downward direction.  

 

Commented [AS9]: New building will require a new plan 
that shows parking. 



 
 

 

441 Main Street 
Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 6 of 8 

11. Localized lighting will be placed on the sidewall of buildings as necessary to illuminate 

doorway entry areas.  

 

12. No lighting will be placed on the back side of buildings facing Wharf Drive or Wharf 

Lane.  

Signage 

13. Signs shall adhere to the Groveland Zoning Bylaw Article 11, Sign Regulations.  

14. Each Building will have one sign that identifies the building number.  

Other Conditions 

15. No petroleum, chemical solvents, hazardous or toxic materials, or any other substances 

deemed hazardous shall be stored or used on the premises.  

16. No on-site storage of pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers, fuels, and potentially toxic or 

hazardous materials in quantities greater than those associated with normal household 

use.  

17. No discharge of non-sanitary waste. 

18. No storage or use of fertilizers. 

19. All sanitary disposal systems shall meet Title 5, CMR 310 rules and regulations. 

20. Shall meet all Groveland Board of Health regulations and apply for all appropriate food 

establishment permits.  

21. No underground storage tanks allowed.  

22. Applicant shall meet all State Rules and Regulations for disposal and storage of any and 

all waste. 

23. This Special Permit is non-assignable and becomes void upon the sale of the business.  

24. Any change of use to this Special Permit will require a subsequent hearing prior to any 

changes being allowed to commence and could require a new filing.  

25. The Applicant shall receive any required federal, state, and local permits required to 

operate. 

26. This Special Permit is subject to recall, given written notification to the Applicant and 

discussion at a public meeting, if written complaints are received from abutters. 

27. In accordance with Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 14.6(E), if the rights authorized to 

the Applicant by said Special Permit are not exercised within three (3) years from the 

date of granting of said Special Permit (filing date with the Town Clerk of the Boards 



 
 

 

441 Main Street 
Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 7 of 8 

decision), then such rights granted shall lapse unless a substantial use thereof has 

commenced, expect for good cause.  

DECISION 

The Board voted to APPROVE/DENY Application #2024-6 and GRANT the Applicant a 

Special Permit for a restaurant use at the Property. 

The motion was as follows: 

XXX  made a motion to XXX. XXX seconded the motion. A vote was taken. Voting aye: 

XXX. Motion XXX.  

 YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 

CHAIR (C. GOODWIN)     

MEMBER (J. STOKES II)     

MEMBER (J. NAVES)     

MEMBER (J. GROHOL)     

MEMBER (B. LIGOLS)     

ALT. MEMBER     

 

This Special Permit does not take effect until it has been recorded in the Southern Essex District 

Registry of Deeds. The Book and Page number must be communicated to the Town Clerk and 

Town Planner for documentation.  

Any appeal of this decision shall be made pursuant to MGL Section 17 of Chapter 40A. 

BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

_____________________________________ 

Chris Goodwin, chair 

 

 

 

 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ 



 
 

 

441 Main Street 
Decision for Special Permit 

#2024-6 

Page 8 of 8 

Executed as a sealed instrument this ________ day of (date)  _______________  

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

ESSEX, SS        (DATE) ___________ 

The personally appeared the name ______________________________________________ and 

acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed, before me.  

 

__________________________________                                       _______________________ 

Notary Public         My Commission Expires: 

 



 

 

Groveland Realty Trust, LLC 
7 Hemlock Lane 

Groveland, MA  01834 
 

 
May 15, 2024 
 
 
 
Chris Goodwin, Chair 
Groveland Zoning Board of Appeals 
183 Main Street 
Groveland, MA   01834 
 
RE: 4 Sewell Street 40B Project 
 
Dear Chris: 
 
The Town of Groveland Zoning Board of Appeals issued their final decision on Groveland Realty 
Trust, LLC (“Groveland Realty”) application for a Comprehensive Permit on November 18, 2020.  
Since this date, the architectural plans were finalized to reflect the preliminary set of floor plans 
approved by the Board and the civil plans to reflect some additional changes and to comply with 
the requirements of the Conservation Commission.  The above items have all been previously 
presented to the Board as inconsequential changes, as defined by the 40B Regulations. 
 
The original approval for this project designed the use of Sewell Street as the primary access.  
Recently, Groveland Realty through a related entity was able to place under contract the 
acquisition of 865 Salem Street (Parcel ID 47-020-0), a 2 + acre parcel located to the east of Sewell 
Street containing 348+ feet of frontage along Salem Street.  This parcel is intended to be owned in 
a separate entity than the land being developed as part of the 192-unit project; however, a portion 
will be subdivided so that the entry drive 
can be relocated further east (see drawing 
and attached plan) avoiding use of Sewell 
Street as its primary entry.  
 
The Planning Board has approved a 
subdivision of the lot being acquired so that 
the house will remain in a separate entity 
while the land being used for the relocated 
entry, detention pond, etc. will be merged 
into the land for the 192-unit project.  



Chris Goodwin 
May 15, 2024 
Page 2 

 

 
The realignment of the project’s primary entry drive will eliminate any conflicts with other users 
on Sewell Street.  By shifting the entry drive 75± feet to the east from Sewell Street, a direct entry 
can be created to the project which creates better exposure for residents/guests locating the project.  
It will also provide better visibility when exiting the site as there is an increased distance from any 
park cars typically found along Salem Street near its intersection with Sewell Street. 
 
Relocation of the entry drive does require some modifications to the drainage system.  These 
changes will be presented to the Conservation Commission as these changes will require a 
modification of a previously issued permit. 

In support of our plan modification, we requested that our traffic engineer, Heather Monticup, PE, 
Greenman-Pedersen, Inc. review the new driveway location to determine whether there are 
adequate sight lines and whether the change in alignment with the driveway of AW Chesterton 
Company creates a safety issue.  Ms. Monticup concluded that the new site driveway location is 
an improvement over access and egress at Sewall Street.  Her report includes an illustration of the 
turning movements of the newly proposed driveway location. 

In working through adherence of the November 18,2020 final decision, we have discovered a typo 
that needs to be corrected.  In the paragraph under Conditions entitled "A.4”, the last sentence 
indicates that the project shall be no more than two hundred and ninety-eight (298) bedrooms when 
in fact the total number of bedrooms is three hundred and twelve (312).  The total number of 
bedrooms represents a mathematical calculation based on the number of one, two, and three-
bedroom units contained within the project.  The total number of each unit type has not changed 
since the original submission.  We believe that the stated amount was simply a typo that was not 
picked up during the review process. We therefore request that the decision be amended 
accordingly. 

As provided for in MA G.L. 760 CMR 56.05(11), the applicant is requesting that the Zoning Board 
of Appeals considers the above changes to be an insubstantial change to the plan previously 
approved.   
 
Please advise if you have any additional questions or concerns or if you require additional 
information.  We look forward to discussing the above requests further with the Board once 
scheduled.  Thank you! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
William Daley 
Managing Member 



BUILDING
ENTRY

BUILDING
ENTRY

BATH
ENTRY







BUILDING
ENTRY

BUILDING
ENTRY

BATH
ENTRY







BUILDING
ENTRY

BUILDING
ENTRY

BATH
ENTRY







BUILDING
ENTRY

BUILDING
ENTRY

BATH
ENTRY





BUILDING
ENTRY

BUILDING
ENTRY

BATH
ENTRY







BUILDING
ENTRY

BUILDING
ENTRY

BATH
ENTRY

























 
 
 

Over 60 offices throughout the United States 
www.gpinet.com 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

May 10, 2024 
 
MAX-2019050.00 
 
Mr. Joel Kahn 
Equity Alliance LLC 
7 Rolling Woods Drive 
Bedford, New Hampshire 03110 
 
SUBJECT: The Quarry at Groveland 
  Site Driveway Relocation 
  Groveland, Massachusetts 
 
Dear Mr. Kahn: 
 
Greenman-Pedersen, Inc. (GPI) has prepared this letter to provide input on the newly proposed driveway 
location for The Quarry at Groveland residential development in Groveland, Massachusetts.  As originally 
approved, the project would use Sewall Street for access and egress to and from the development.  Although 
the minimum sight distance requirements at this location were met, an alternative driveway location was 
investigated.  As currently proposed, the site driveway to The Quarry at Groveland residential development 
will be located on Salem Street approximately 95 feet east of Sewall Street on a portion of the residential 
property at 865 Salem Street.  The existing residential home driveway will be relocated to the east of the 
home. 
 
In addition to the driveway relocation, the proposed wheelchair ramps and crosswalk being installed across 
Salem Street as part of the project will also have to be relocated.  The crosswalk will now be located to the 
east of the proposed site driveway. 
 
GPI has investigated the sight lines at the new site driveway and crosswalk location and prepared a Driveway 
Sight Distance Plan and Crosswalk Sight Distance Plan that are attached to this letter.  The minimum sight 
line requirements are also met at this new location.  In fact, looking left from the driveway in the new location 
is improved since there will no longer be a sight line obstruction with any vehicles that are parked in the right-
of-way on the adjacent property next to Sewell Street. 
 
Although the new proposed driveway location will no longer be aligned with the A.W. Chesterton Company 
driveway, there is a clear line of sight between two motorists leaving each driveway.  In addition, a truck and a 
passenger car can pull out onto Salem Street and not collide.  A turning movement sketch illustrating these 
two movements is also attached to this letter. 
 
In summary, the new site driveway location on the 865 Salem Street property is an improvement over access 
and egress at Sewall Street.  Should you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact 
me directly at (978) 570-2968. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
GREENMAN-PEDERSEN, INC. 

 
Heather L. Monticup, P.E. 
Vice President / Director of Land Development 
44 Stiles Road, Suite One, Salem, New Hampshire  03079 
 
enclosure(s) cc:  Bill Daley (via email) 



S
E

W
E

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

SALEM    S
TREET

CJD HLM

Q
U

AR
R

Y 
AP

AR
TM

EN
TS

 S
IG

H
T 

LI
N

E 
PL

AN
.D

W
G

   
 1

/2
4/

20
24

DRIVEWAY
SIGHT

DISTANCE
PLAN

JANUARY 24, 2024

1 OF 2

JANUARY 24, 2024

GROVELAND REALTY
TRUST LLC

7 HEMLOCK LANE
GROVELAND, MA 01834

1"=60'

REVISIONS

NO. REVISION DATE

DRAWN/DESIGN BY CHECKED BY

PREPARED FOR

SCALE:

GPINET.COM

D
R

IV
EW

A
Y 

SI
G

H
T 

D
IS

TA
N

C
E 

PL
A

N

40
B

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
A

L 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

G
R

O
VE

LA
N

D
, M

A

Feet

120
60

0



S
E

W
E

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

SALEM    S
TREET

CJD HLM

Q
U

AR
R

Y 
AP

AR
TM

EN
TS

 S
IG

H
T 

LI
N

E 
PL

AN
.D

W
G

   
 1

/2
4/

20
24

CROSSWALK
SIGHT

DISTANCE
PLAN

JANUARY 24, 2024

2 OF 2

JANUARY 24, 2024

GROVELAND REALTY
TRUST LLC

7 HEMLOCK LANE
GROVELAND, MA 01834

1"=60'

REVISIONS

NO. REVISION DATE

DRAWN/DESIGN BY CHECKED BY

PREPARED FOR

SCALE:

GPINET.COM

C
R

O
SS

W
A

LK
 S

IG
H

T 
D

IS
TA

N
C

E 
PL

A
N

40
B

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
A

L 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

G
R

O
VE

LA
N

D
, M

A

Feet

120
60

0





 

T:\T0845\T0845.07\Docs\Letters\T0845.07 Stormwater Review #3.docx 

 
 
 
Annie Schindler                         June 26, 2024 
Town Planner 
Town of Groveland 
183 Main Street 
Groveland, MA 01834 
 
Ref. T0845.07 
 
Re: Stormwater Design Peer Review Letter #3 
 The Quarry at Groveland 

  
Dear Ms. Schindler: 
 
On behalf of the Town of Groveland, TEC, Inc. (TEC) reviewed documents as part of the 
Stormwater Design peer review for the proposed Quarry at Groveland, a 40B residential 
development to be located on Sewell Street in Groveland, MA. Greenman-Pedersen, Inc. (GPI) 
and Millennium Engineering, submitted the following documents on behalf of Groveland Realty 
Trust LLC (the “Applicant”), which TEC reviewed for conformance with the Town of Groveland 
Zoning Bylaws and generally accepted industry standards: 
 

• Construction Plan Set for Residential Complex “The Quarry at Groveland”, 
prepared by Millenium Engineering, Inc.; dated April 12, 2024. 

• Stormwater Management Report for The Site Plan at Sewell Street Groveland, MA; 
prepared by Millennium Engineering, Inc.; dated May 12, 2021, revised June 11, 2024. 

• Traffic Letter, The Quarry at Groveland Site Driveway Relocation; prepared by GPI; 
dated May 10, 2024.  

• Summary of changes letter for 4 Sewell Street 40B Project; prepared by Groveland 
Realty Trust, LLC; dated May 15, 2024. 

 
Upon review of the documents and plans, TEC has compiled the following comments for the 
Board’s consideration.  
 
Site Plan/Layout  

1. The Site Plans have been revised to show a new driveway relocation for the site entrance. 
Originally, Sewall Street was used to access the development. Site access will now be 
located within a section of the existing parcel at 865 Salem Street, east of Sewall Street. 
The Applicant should update the site plans to show updated easement(s)/subdivision 
delineations.                                   
 

2. The following is a summary of changes to the Site Plans due to the relocation of the site 
entrance.  

a. Sidewalk improvements along Salem Street, including a proposed bus stop area 
and wheelchair ramps, have been extended east.  



The Quarry at Groveland – Groveland, MA 
Stormwater Design Peer Review #3 
June 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 6 
 

T:\T0845\T0845.07\Docs\Letters\T0845.07 
Stormwater Review #3.docx 

b. The previously approved bus stop area along the northern side of Salem Street 
has been removed and replaced in new location. 

c. The previously approved Infiltration Basin #1 and Underground Detention System 
have been removed from the site plans and replaced with a proposed detention 
basin. 
 

d. A Detention Basin is now proposed east of Sewall Street and west of the 
proposed site entrance. Associated drainage structures have been relocated and 
adjusted. 
 

3. Landscaped areas to the east of the residential buildings have been altered to include 
separate surface lot and garage entrances along Road “A”. Retaining walls within the 
above-mentioned landscape have been altered. 
 

4. The limit of clearing/grubbing, erosion control, paving, drainage, and proposed grading 
along Nelson Street have been altered. The emergency access way along Nelson Street 
has been removed from the plans. As stated by Groveland Town Staff; the Groveland 
Fire Chief had electronic correspondence with the Groveland Town Planner on June 24, 
2024, stating he feels that the new driveway design appears large enough to handle the 
traffic volumes that could incur during an emergency.       

Traffic Engineering Review 

5. The “desirable” intersection sight lines depicted on GPI’s January 2024 Driveway Sight 
Distance Plan (Exhibit 1 of 2) should be shown on the site plans because the plans are 
the formal document approved by the Board.  The Applicant should obtain a sight line 
easement from the current property owner for any sight line triangle areas that fall 
outside the existing Salem Street right-of-way.  The plans should include a note 
specifying “Signs, landscaping and other features located within sight triangle areas shall 
be designed, installed, and maintained so as not to exceed 2.5 feet in height. Snow 
windrows located within sight triangle areas that exceed 3 feet in height or that would 
otherwise inhibit sight lines shall be promptly removed.” 
 

6. The Applicant’s team proposes a crosswalk that is located approximately 50 feet behind 
the stop line along the entrance to the newly relocated driveway.  This location presents 
pedestrian conflicts and should be located adjacent to the edge of the roadway in front of 
the stop line (not currently shown) for improvement visibility. 
 

7. The new crosswalk markings should be accompanied by back-to-back florescent yellow-
green pedestrian warning signs on both sides of the roadway at the crosswalk (W11-2/ 
W16-7P) and advance warning signs (W11-2/W16-9P) placed along the Salem Street 
approaches based on Table 2C-3 of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD). 
 

 



The Quarry at Groveland – Groveland, MA 
Stormwater Design Peer Review #3 
June 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 6 
 

T:\T0845\T0845.07\Docs\Letters\T0845.07 
Stormwater Review #3.docx 

8. TEC recommends that the painted crosswalk detail on Sheet C-26 be changed to a 
ladder-style crosswalk with 12”-24” wide lines with 2’ gaps. For any crosswalks in or near 
the right-of-way, TEC recommends the use of thermoplastic pavement markings for 
extended life.  It is unclear where the ‘yield’ markings shown in the detail on Sheet C-26 
will be placed. 
 

9. The minimum height to the bottom of traffic signs should be changed to a minimum of 7 
feet per the MUTCD.  This applies to the handicap parking sign detail on Sheet C-26, 
other signs located throughout the site, and those installed off-site for the new 
crosswalk. 
 

10. The Applicant’s team should provide a detail for the proposed sidewalk/driveway 
crossing at 865 Salem Street to show a consistent sidewalk elevation (without ramps), if 
feasible.  Otherwise, the driveway-related pedestrian ramps should be detailed.  The 
existing mailbox will need to be relocated to an area that meets accessibility standards. 

Stormwater Design Review 

11. TEC recommends updating the HydroCAD calculations (i.e. CB2, CB10, CDS 2, and 
Infiltration Basin 2) to match the inverts and areas provided in the site plans.  
 

12. The HydroCAD calculations indicate overtopping would occur during the 100-year storm 
at DMH11A and DMH11D. TEC recommends the Applicant revise the site plans and 
HydroCAD calculations such that overtopping of these structures do not occur during all 
major storm events.  
 

13. TEC recommends adding pipe information for the proposed Detention Basin #1 inlet from 
CDS 1 to the site plans.  
 

14. TEC recommends the Applicant update the Infiltration Basin #2 and #3 Details (Sheet C-
21 of the site plans) to match the HydroCAD peak elevation calculations.  
 

15. The Applicant is proposing two infiltration trenches east of the new site entrance. TEC 
recommends the Applicant include a detail for each section of trench within the site plans. 
Along with this, the Applicant should confirm if any grading changes anticipated within the 
area surrounding the infiltration trenches. TEC recommends additional test pit information 
be provided for these proposed trenches.  
 

 

 

 

 



The Quarry at Groveland – Groveland, MA 
Stormwater Design Peer Review #3 
June 26, 2024 
Page 4 of 6 
 

T:\T0845\T0845.07\Docs\Letters\T0845.07 
Stormwater Review #3.docx 

Massachusetts Stormwater Standards 
1) Standard 1 (Untreated discharges): No new stormwater conveyance may discharge 

untreated stormwater directly to or cause erosion in wetlands or water of the 
Commonwealth.  
The peak discharge rate of the pipes inflowing Basin #2 and #3 (DMH4, outflow and 
DMH14B, outflow) do not match the rate used for riprap sizing calculations. The peak 
discharge rate of the pipe outflowing Basin #2 (Infiltration Basin 2, Primary) does not 
match the rate used for riprap sizing calculations. Along with this, riprap sizing 
calculations have not been completed for the outflow pipe of Basin #1 and #3. TEC 
recommends the Applicant include basin and pipe identification within the riprap sizing 
calculations for Infiltration Basins, similar to the riprap sizing calculations for Detention 
Basin #1. 
 

2) Standard 2 (Peak rate control and flood prevention): Stormwater management systems 
must be designed so that post-development peak discharge rates do not exceed pre-
development peak discharge rates. This Standard may be waived for land subject to 
coastal storm flowage.  
This standard has been met. 
 

3) Standard 3 (Recharge to Ground water): Loss of annual recharge to ground water shall 
be eliminated or minimized through the use of infiltration measures, including 
environmentally sensitive site design, low impact development techniques, best 
management practices, and good operation and maintenance. At a minimum, the 
annual recharge from the post-development site shall approximate the annual recharge 
from the pre-development conditions based on soil type. This Standard is met when the 
stormwater management system is designed to infiltrate the required recharge volume 
as determined in accordance with the Massachusetts’s Stormwater Handbook.  
This standard has been previously met; however, TEC suggests the applicant provide 
the basin storage tables from the applicants HydroCAD calculations to confirm the 
storage volumes below the lowest outlet of each basin. Along with this, the volumes 
provided by the two infiltration trenches should be detailed as well. 
 

4) Standard 4 (80% TSS removal): Stormwater management systems must be designed 
to remove 80% of the average annual post-construction load of Total Suspended Solids 
(TSS).  
This standard has been previously met; however, the applicant should revise the TSS 
removal tables to include the proposed infiltration trenches.  
 

5) Standard 5 (Higher Potential Pollutant Loads): For land uses with higher potential 
pollutant loads, source control and pollution prevention shall be implemented in 
accordance with the Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook to eliminate or reduce the 
discharge of stormwater runoff from such land uses to the maximum extent practicable.  
This standard has been met. 



The Quarry at Groveland – Groveland, MA 
Stormwater Design Peer Review #3 
June 26, 2024 
Page 5 of 6 
 

T:\T0845\T0845.07\Docs\Letters\T0845.07 
Stormwater Review #3.docx 

 
6) Standard 6 (Critical Areas): Stormwater discharges to a Zone II or Interim Wellhead 

Protection Area of a public water supply and stormwater discharges near or any other 
critical area require the use of the specific source control and pollution prevention 
measures and the specific stormwater best management practices determined by the 
Department to be suitable for managing discharges to such area, as provided in the 
Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook. A discharge is near a critical area if there is a 
strong likelihood of a significant impact occurring to said area, taking into account site-
specific factors. Stormwater discharges to Outstanding Resource Waters or Special 
Resource Waters shall be set back from the receiving water and receive the highest 
and best practical method of treatment. A “stormwater discharge,” as defined in 314 
CMR 3.04(2)(a)1. or (b), to an Outstanding Resource Water or Special Resource Water 
shall comply with 314 CMR 3.00 and 314 CMR 4.00. Stormwater discharges to Zone I 
or Zone A are prohibited unless essential to the operation of the public water supply. 
A portion of this project is within Zone II. This standard has been previously met; 
however, the Applicant is proposing two sections of infiltration trenches to the east of 
the new site entrance. A minimum of 44% pretreatment is required prior to discharging 
to an infiltration BMP.  
 

7) Standard 7 (Redevelopment). A redevelopment project is required to meet Standards 1-
6 only to the maximum extent practicable. Remaining standards shall be met, and the 
project shall improve existing conditions.  
This standard has been met. 
 

8) Standard 8 (Erosion, Sediment Control): A plan to control construction-related impacts, 
including erosion sedimentation and other pollutant sources during construction and 
land disturbance activities (construction period erosion, sedimentation, and pollution 
prevention plan), must be developed, and implemented.  
This standard has been met.  
 

9) Standard 9 (Operation and Maintenance): A long-term operation and maintenance plan 
must be developed and implemented to ensure that stormwater management systems 
function as designed.  
This standard has been met. 
 

10)  Standard 10 (Illicit Discharges): All illicit discharges to the stormwater management 
system are prohibited.  
This standard has been met.  
 
 
 



The Quarry at Groveland – Groveland, MA 
Stormwater Design Peer Review #3 
June 26, 2024 
Page 6 of 6 
 

T:\T0845\T0845.07\Docs\Letters\T0845.07 
Stormwater Review #3.docx 

Please do not hesitate to contact me directly if you have any questions concerning 
our comments at 978-794-1792.Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
TEC, Inc. 
“The Engineering Corporation” 

 
Peter Ellison, PE 
Director of Strategic Land Planning 



-1- 
 

 

NEF Rental Regulatory Agreement 

Form Revised 1.18.2024 

 

REGULATORY AND USE AGREEMENT 

[Rental] 

 

For Comprehensive Permit Projects in Which Funding is Provided 
By Other Than a State Agency 

 

 This Regulatory and Use Agreement (this "Agreement") is made this ___ day of ________, 

20__, by and between the Massachusetts Housing Finance Agency acting as Subsidizing Agency 

(the “Subsidizing Agency”), as defined under the provisions of 760 CMR 56.02, on behalf of the 

Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (“EOHLC”)and _Groveland Realty 

Trust, LLC__, a Massachusetts Limited Liability Company___________ having a mailing 

address at _7 Hemlock Lane, Groveland, MA 01834____, and its successors and assigns (the 

"Developer"). 

 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer intends to construct a housing development known as _The 

Quarry at Groveland____ at a 38.20__-acre site located at 4 Sewell Street _ in the Town of 

___Groveland___, Massachusetts (the “Municipality”), more particularly described in Exhibit A 

attached hereto and made a part hereof (the "Development"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, EOHLC has promulgated Regulations at 760 CMR 56.00 (as may be amended 

from time to time, the “Regulations”) relating to the issuance of comprehensive permits under 

Chapter 40B, Sections 20-23, of the Massachusetts General Laws (as may be amended from time 

to time, the “Act”) and pursuant thereto has issued its Comprehensive Permit Guidelines (as may 

be amended from time to time, the “Guidelines” and, collectively with the Regulations and the 

Act, the “Comprehensive Permit Rules”); 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Development is being financed with a permanent loan of approximately 

$_47,000,000___, which is equal to or greater than twenty-five percent (25%) of the permanent  

financing for the Project,  by _Enterprise Bank______, a Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 

(“FHLBB”) member bank (the “NEF Lender”), a non-governmental entity for which the 

Massachusetts Housing Finance Agency acts as Subsidizing Agency pursuant to the 

Comprehensive Permit Rules; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Massachusetts Housing Finance Agency will serve as Subsidizing Agency 

on behalf of EOHLC pursuant to the Comprehensive Permit Rules and in accordance with the 

terms and provisions hereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer has received a comprehensive permit (the “Comprehensive 

Permit”) from the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Municipality in accordance with the Act, which 



2 

permit is recorded at the _Essex___County Registry of Deeds (“Registry”) in Book _39342____, 

Page 389  and by the terms of this Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Comprehensive Permit and the requirements of the 

Comprehensive Permit Rules, the Development is to consist of a total of _192___ rental units, of 

which a minimum of 25 percent (_48_ units) (the "Affordable Units") will be rented to Low or 

Moderate Income Persons and Families (as defined herein) at rentals specified in this Agreement 

and will be subject to this Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties intend that this Agreement shall serve as a “Use Restriction” as 

defined in and required by Section 56.05(13) of the Regulations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize that Affirmative Fair Marketing (as defined herein) is 

an important precondition for rental of Affordable Units and that local preference is only applicable 

at initial rent-up and cannot be granted in a manner which results in a violation of applicable fair 

housing laws, regulations and subsidy programs; and. 

 

WHEREAS, the parties recognize that the Municipality has an interest in preserving 

affordability of the Affordable Units and may offer valuable services in administration, monitoring 

and enforcement. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements hereinafter set forth, and other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

the Subsidizing Agency and the Developer hereby agree as follows: 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1. In addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms as used in 

this Agreement shall have the meanings set forth below: 

 

Act shall have the meaning given such term in the Recitals hereof. 

 

Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing  Plan shall mean the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing 

Plan prepared by the Developer in accordance with the Guidelines and approved by the 

Subsidizing Agency, with such changes thereto that may be approved by the Subsidizing Agency, 

as further set forth in Section 3. 

 

Affordable Units shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals above. 

 

Allowable Development Costs shall have the meaning given such term in Section 20 hereof. 

 

Annual Income shall be determined in the manner set forth in 24 C.F.R. 5.609 (or any successor 

regulations). 

 

Area shall mean the _Lawrence____ HUD Metro FMR Area (HMFA) as designated by the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”).   



3 

 

Area Median Income (“AMI”) shall mean the median gross income for the Area, as determined 

from time to time by HUD.  For purposes of determining whether Adjusted Family Income 

qualifies a tenant for treatment as a Low or Moderate Income Tenant, the Area Median Income 

shall be adjusted for family size.   

 

Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report shall mean an annual report to be submitted 

by the Developer on a form prescribed by the Subsiding Agency, pursuant to Section 12(e) hereof.   

 

Comprehensive Permit shall have the meaning given such term in the Recitals hereof. 

 

Comprehensive Permit Rules shall have the meaning given such term in the Recitals hereof. 

 

Construction Lender shall mean the lender(s) making the Construction Loan, and its successors 

and assigns. 

 

Construction Loan shall mean the loan to the Developer for the construction of the Development. 

 

Construction Mortgage shall mean the mortgage from the Developer securing the Construction 

Loan. 

 

Cost Certification shall have the meaning given such term in Section 20 hereof. 

 

Cost Method shall have the meaning given such term in Section 7(d) hereof. 

  

Developer Parties shall have the meaning given such term in Section 7(a) hereof. 

 

Developer’s Equity shall be determined in the manner set forth in Section 7(d) hereof. 

 

Development shall have the meaning given such term in the Recitals hereof. 

 

Development Revenues: All rental income, receipts and other revenue derived from the operation 

of the Development other than revenues derived from any sales, financing, or other capital 

transaction, and not including any amounts payable in respect of capital contributions paid by any 

members or partners of the Developer or any loan proceeds payable to the Developer. 

 

Distribution Payments shall have the meaning given such term in Section 7(a) hereof. 

 

Event of Default shall mean a default in the observance of any covenant under this Agreement or 

the Mortgage existing after the expiration of any applicable notice and cure periods. 

 

Excess Development Revenues shall have the meaning given such term in Section 12(e) hereof 

 

Excess Equity: Surplus Cash in excess of the permitted Limited Dividend Distribution, as 

calculated in accordance with the Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report described 

in Section 12 hereof.   



4 

 

Excess Equity Account: An interest-bearing account maintained by the Lender (or if the Loan is 

paid off, with the Subsidizing Agency) for the benefit of the Development during the Term hereof 

containing Development Revenues which exceed the Limited Dividend Distribution in a given 

year or years. 

 

Family shall have the same meaning as set forth in 24 C.F.R. §5.403 (or any successor regulations).   

 

Fiscal Year:  The fiscal year of the Developer ending [_December 31___]. 

 

Guidelines shall have the meaning given such term in the Recitals hereof. 

 

Housing Subsidy Program shall mean any other state or federal housing subsidy program providing 

rental or other subsidy to the Development. 

 

HUD shall mean the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

Lender shall mean the Construction Lender and/or the Permanent Lender. 

 

Limited Dividend Distribution: The aggregate annual distributions permitted to be made to the 

Developer from Development Revenues as calculated pursuant to the Audited Annual Limited 

Dividend Financial Report. 

 

Limited Dividend Term shall have the meaning set forth in Section 22(b) hereof. 

 

Loan shall mean the Construction Loan and/or the Permanent Loan. 

 

Low or Moderate Income Persons or Families shall mean persons or Families whose Annual 

Incomes do not exceed eighty percent (80%) of the Median Income for the Area, and shall also 

mean persons or Families meeting such lower income requirements as may be required under the 

Comprehensive Permit or any applicable Housing Subsidy Program.  

 

Low or Moderate Income Tenants shall mean Low or Moderate Income Persons or Families who 

occupy the Affordable Units. 

 

Mortgage shall mean the Construction Mortgage and/or the Permanent Mortgage. 

 

Permanent Lender shall mean the lender(s) making the Permanent Loan to the Developer, and its 

successors and assigns. 

 

Permanent Loan shall mean the Permanent Loan made or committed to be made by the Permanent 

Lender to the Developer after completion of construction of the Development, which will replace 

the Construction Loan, or any subsequent refinancing thereof in compliance with any specific 

terms of the Comprehensive Permit or any Housing Subsidy Program applicable to the 

Development. 

 



5 

Permanent Mortgage shall mean the mortgage from the Developer to the Permanent Lender 

securing the Permanent Loan, or any replacement thereof. 

 

Regulations shall have the meaning given such term in the Recitals hereof. 

 

Related Person: shall mean a person whose relationship to such other person is such that (i) the 

relationship between such persons would result in a disallowance of losses under Section 267 or 

707(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, or (ii) such persons are members of the same controlled 

group of corporations (as defined in Section 1563(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, except that 

“more than 50 percent” shall be substituted for “at least 80 percent” each place it appears therein).  

 

Resident Selection Plan shall mean the Resident Selection Plan, prepared by the Developer in 

accordance with the Guidelines and approved by the Subsidizing Agency, with such changes 

thereto which may be approved by the Subsidizing Agency. 

 

Substantial Completion shall have the meaning given such term in Section 19 hereof. 

 

Surety shall have the meaning given such term in Section 21 hereof. 

 

Surplus Cash shall have the meaning given such term in Section 7(c) hereof. 

 

 

Term shall have the meaning set forth in Section 22 hereof. 

 

Total Development Costs (“TDC”) shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(h) hereof. 

 

Value Method shall have the meaning given such term in Section 7(d) hereof. 

 

 

CONSTRUCTION OBLIGATIONS 

 

2. (a) The Developer agrees to construct the Development in accordance with plans and 

specifications approved by the Subsidizing Agency and the Municipality (the “Plans and 

Specifications”), which are consistent with the minimum design and construction standards of the 

Subsidizing Agency applicable to comprehensive permit projects in accordance with the 

Comprehensive Permit Guidelines, and in accordance with all on-site and off-site construction, 

design and land use conditions of the Comprehensive Permit, and in accordance with the 

information describing the Development presented by the Developer to the Subsidizing Agency in 

its application for Final Approval. The Development must fully comply with the State Building 

Code and with all applicable state and federal building, environmental, health, safety and other 

laws, rules, and regulations, including without limitation all applicable federal and state laws, rules 

and regulations relating to the operation of adaptable and accessible housing for the handicapped.  

Except to the extent that the Development is exempted from such compliance by the 

Comprehensive Permit, the Development must also comply with all applicable local codes, 

ordinances and by-laws. 

 



6 

 (b) The Subsidizing Agency shall monitor compliance with the construction 

obligations set forth in this section in such manner as the Subsidizing Agency may deem 

reasonably necessary.  In furtherance thereof, the Developer shall provide to the Subsidizing 

Agency, prior to commencement of construction, a certification from the Construction Lender 

concerning construction monitoring in a form acceptable to the Subsidizing Agency. If the 

information provided to the Subsidizing Agency is not acceptable to the Subsidizing Agency, or if 

at any time after acceptance the NEF Lender’s construction monitor fails to provide adequate 

construction oversight in accordance with the requirements of the NEF Lender’s certification, the 

Subsidizing Agency may require that the Developer fund the cost of a construction monitor 

retained by the Subsidizing Agency.   

 

 

USE RESTRICTION/RENTALS AND RENTS 

 

3. (a) The Developer shall rent the Affordable Units during the Term hereof to Low or 

Moderate Income Persons or Families upon the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Comprehensive Permit and this Agreement. In fulfilling the foregoing requirement, the Developer 

will accept referrals of tenants from the Housing Authority in the Municipality, and will not 

unreasonably refuse occupancy to any prospective tenants so referred who otherwise meet the 

requirements of the Resident Selection Plan.  The foregoing provisions shall not relieve the 

Developer of any obligations it may have under the provisions of other documents and instruments 

it has entered with respect to any applicable Housing Subsidy Program; provided, however, the 

Subsidizing Agency shall have no obligation hereunder, expressed or implied, to monitor or 

enforce the applicable requirements of any such Housing Subsidy Programs. 

 

 (b)  The annual rental expense for each Affordable Unit (equal to the gross rent plus 

allowances for all tenant-paid utilities, including but not limited to tenant-paid heat, hot water and 

electricity) shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of eighty percent (80%) of AMI (or such other 

higher percentage of AMI established by EOHLC for Comprehensive Permit Projects In Which 

Funding Is Provided By Other Than a State Agency), adjusted for household size, assuming that 

an Affordable Unit which does not have a separate bedroom is occupied by one individual, and 

that a unit which has one or more separate bedrooms is occupied by 1.5 individuals for each 

separate bedroom.  If rentals of the Affordable Units are subsidized under any Housing Subsidy 

Program, then the rent applicable to the Affordable Units may be limited to that permitted by such 

Housing Subsidy Program, provided that the tenant’s share of rent does not exceed the maximum 

annual rental expense as provided in this Agreement.  

 

(c) For purposes of satisfying the requirement that the Affordable Units shall be 

occupied by Low or Moderate Income Tenants hereunder, no Low or Moderate Income Tenant 

shall be denied continued occupancy because, after admission, the Low Moderate Income Tenant’s 

Annual Income exceeds eighty percent (80%) of Area Median Income.  No Low or Moderate 

Income Tenant shall continue to be counted as a Low or Moderate Income Tenant as of any date 

upon which such tenant's Annual Income exceeds one hundred forty percent (140%) of the level 

at which a tenant may be qualified as a Low or Moderate Income Tenant provided, however, that 

the Developer shall not be in default regarding the requirements of this Agreement to maintain 

occupancy of the Affordable Units by Low or Moderate Income Tenants if the Developer rents the 



7 

next available unit  to Low or Moderate Income Tenants as needed to achieve compliance with 

such requirements (thereupon, as rented to a Low or Moderate Income Tenant, such unit or units 

shall be deemed an Affordable Unit hereunder).   

 

 (d)  If, after initial occupancy, the income of a tenant in an Affordable Unit increases, 

and as a result of such increase, exceeds one hundred forty percent (140%) of the maximum income 

permitted hereunder for such a tenant, at the expiration of the applicable lease term, the rent 

restrictions shall no longer apply to such tenant. In the event that a Low or Moderate-Income 

Tenant’s Annual Income increases and, as a result of such increase, exceeds one hundred forty 

percent (140%) of Area Median Income, the Developer may charge the formerly Low or Moderate-

Income Tenant a market rate for the dwelling unit. 

 

(e) Rentals for the Affordable Units shall be initially established as shown on the 

Rental Schedule attached as Appendix A hereto, subject to change from time to time (if necessary 

to reflect any changes in AMI) in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and 

any applicable Housing Subsidy Program.  The Developer shall annually submit to the Subsidizing 

Agency a proposed schedule of monthly rents and utility allowances for all Affordable Units in 

the Development.  It is understood that the Subsidizing Agency shall review such schedule with 

respect to the maximum rents for all the Affordable Units based on the size and required extent of 

affordability of each Affordable Unit, and shall not take into account the actual incomes of 

individual tenants in any given Affordable Unit.  Rents for the Affordable Units shall not be 

increased above such maximum monthly rents without the Subsidizing Agency’s prior approval 

of either (i) a specific request by the Developer for a rent increase; or (ii) the next annual schedule 

of rents and allowances as set forth in the preceding sentence.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, rent 

increases shall be subject to the provisions of outstanding leases and shall not be implemented 

without at least 30 days’ prior written notice by the Developer to all affected tenants.   

 

 (f) The Developer shall obtain income certifications satisfactory in form and manner 

to the Subsidizing Agency at least annually for all Low or Moderate-Income Tenants. Said income 

certifications shall be kept by the management agent for the Development and made available to 

the Subsidizing Agency upon request. 

 

 (g) Prior to initial lease-up, the Developer shall submit an Affirmative Fair Housing 

Marketing and Resident Selection Plan (also known as an “AFHMP”) for the Subsidizing 

Agency’s approval.  At a minimum the AFHMP shall meet the requirements of the Guidelines, as 

the same may be amended from time to time.  The AFHMP, upon approval by the Subsidizing 

Agency, shall become a part of this Agreement and shall have the same force and effect as if set 

out in full in this Agreement.   

 

 (h)  The AFHMP shall designate entities to implement the plan that are qualified to 

perform their duties.  The Subsidizing Agency may require that another entity be found if the 

Subsidizing Agency finds that the entity designated by the Developer is not qualified.  Moreover, 

the Subsidizing Agency may require the removal of an entity responsible for a duty under the 

AFHMP if that entity does not meet its obligations under the AFHMP.  

 



8 

 (i) The restrictions contained herein are intended to be construed as an affordable 

housing restriction as defined in Section 31 of Chapter 184 of Massachusetts General Laws which 

has the benefit of Section 32 of said Chapter 184, such that the restrictions contained herein shall 

not be limited in duration by any rule or operation of law but rather shall run for the Term hereof.  

In addition, this Agreement is intended to be superior to the lien of any mortgage on the 

Development and survive any foreclosure or exercise of any remedies thereunder and the 

Developer agrees to obtain any prior lienholder consent with respect thereto as the Subsidizing 

Agency shall require.  

 

 

TENANT SELECTION AND OCCUPANCY 

 

4. The Developer shall use its good faith efforts during the Term of this Agreement to 

maintain all the Affordable Units within the Development at full occupancy as set forth in Section 

2 hereof.  In marketing and renting the Affordable Units, the Developer shall comply with the 

Resident Selection Plan and AFHMP which are incorporated herein by reference with the same 

force and effect as if set out in this Agreement.  

 

5. Occupancy agreements for Affordable Units shall meet the requirements of the 

Comprehensive Permit Rules, this Agreement, and any applicable Housing Subsidy Program, and 

shall contain clauses, among others, wherein each resident of such Affordable Unit:  

 

 (a) certifies the accuracy of the statements made in the application and income survey; 

 

 (b) agrees that the family income, family composition and other eligibility 

requirements, shall be deemed substantial and material obligations of his or her occupancy; that 

he or she will comply promptly with all requests for information with respect thereto from the 

Developer or the Subsidizing Agency; and that his or her failure or refusal to comply with a request 

for information with respect thereto shall be deemed a violation of a substantial obligation of his 

or her occupancy; and 

 

(c) agrees that at such time as the Developer or the Subsidizing Agency may direct, he 

or she will furnish to the Developer certification of then current family income, with such 

documentation as the Subsidizing Agency shall reasonably require; and agrees to such charges as 

the Subsidizing Agency has previously approved for any facilities and/or services which may be 

furnished by the Developer or others to such resident upon his or her request, in addition to the 

facilities included in the rentals, as amended from time to time pursuant to Section 3 above.  

 

(d) the Developer shall enter into a written lease with each Low or Moderate or Income 

Tenant which shall be for a minimum period of one year with automatic renewals for successive 

terms of one year each, and which provides that the lease shall not be terminated and/or the tenant 

shall not be evicted for any reason other than a substantial breach of a material provision of such 

lease.  

 

 

 



9 

EXPIRATION OF RESTRICTIONS - TENANT PROTECTIONS 

 

6. (a) If, upon the expiration of the Term hereof, the affordability requirements under the 

Comprehensive Permit shall expire, the Developer shall deliver a written notice to all Low or 

Moderate or Income Tenants of such expiration (the "Expiration Notice") at the same time that it 

shall provide such notice to the Subsidizing Agency.  The Expiration Notice shall inform all Low 

or Moderate or Income Tenants of the tenant protections described in this Section 6.  

 

 (b) For a period of one year after the date of expiration ("Year 1") (the date of 

expiration is hereinafter referred to as the "Expiration Date"), the Developer may not increase the 

rentals payable by any Low or Moderate-Income Tenant on the Expiration Date (a "Protected Low 

or Moderate-Income Tenant"), except for rental increases which would have been permitted by the 

terms and provisions of the applicable Housing Subsidy Program if such Expiration Date had not 

occurred. 

 

 (c) For a period of two years after Year 1 ("CPI Index Period"), the rentals for units 

occupied by Protected Low or Moderate Income Tenants may not be increased more than once 

annually by the greater of: (i) the consumer price index (applicable to the area in which the 

Development is located) times the rental rate in effect as of the Expiration Date; or (ii) such higher 

amount as the Subsidizing Agency shall approve.  In no event may the Developer increase rentals 

for such Affordable Units in excess of any limitations contained in a Housing Subsidy Program 

which remains in effect after the Expiration Date. 

 

 (d) For three (3) years after the CPI Index Period (the "Transition Period"), the 

Developer shall provide Relocation Assistance, as defined herein, for any Protected Low or 

Moderate-Income Tenant who voluntarily terminates his or her lease during the Transition Period 

as a result of rental increases.  For the purposes hereof, the term "Relocation Assistance" shall 

mean reasonable assistance in locating a comparable affordable unit, including the payment of any 

broker’s fees and the payment of reasonable moving expenses within a thirty (30) mile radius of 

the Development. 

 

 (e) Upon expiration, the Developer agrees to continue to use the form of occupancy 

agreement for all Protected Low or Moderate-Income Tenants until the expiration of the periods 

described in (b) and (c), above.  Thereafter, the Developer may require that all Protected Low or 

Moderate-Income Tenants enter into the lease form used for tenants in the market-rental units or a 

lease substantially in the form published by the National Apartment Association, provided that any 

new occupancy agreement shall provide the Protected Low or Moderate-Income Tenants with the 

benefits of subsection (d), above. 

 

 (f) The provisions of this Section 6 shall survive the termination of any other 

provisions of this Agreement as a result of expiration until the expiration of the periods described 

in subsections (b), (c), and (d), above.  

 

 (g) Protected Low or Moderate-Income Tenants shall have a right to enforce the 

protections provided them in this Section 6. 

 



10 

 

 

 

 

LIMITED DIVIDENDS; USE OF DEVELOPMENT REVENUES 

 

7. (a)  The Developer covenants and agrees that no Distribution Payments may be made 

to the Developer other than Limited Dividend Distributions.  Repayment of developer’s fee loaned 

is treated as a Limited Dividend Distribution and is subject to the limitations set forth herein.  

Limited Dividend Distributions may be made: (i) on a quarterly basis within the  Developer’s 

Fiscal Year; (ii) only once all currently payable amounts as identified in subsection (i) below are 

paid as evidenced by a certificate provided by an independent accountant certifying that no such 

obligations are more than thirty (30) days past due and that there are no outstanding material 

extraordinary obligations incurred outside the ordinary course of business, even if thirty (30) or 

less days past due; and (iii) only after (x) submission by the Developer of the Audited Annual 

Limited Dividend Financial Report pursuant to Paragraph 12(b) below and (y) acceptance by the 

Subsidizing Agency of said report.  Except with the prior written authorization of the Subsidizing 

Agency, Limited Dividend Distributions cannot be derived or made from borrowed funds or from 

the sale of capital assets.   

 

For the purposes hereof, the term “Distribution Payments” shall mean all amounts paid 

from Development Revenues (herein called “Development Revenues”) which are paid to any 

partner, manager, member or any other Related Person of the Developer (collectively, the 

“Developer Parties”) as profit, income, or fees or other expenses which are unrelated to the 

operation of the Development or which are in excess of fees and expenses which would be incurred 

from persons providing similar services who are not Developer Parties and who provide such 

services on an arms-length basis. 

 

 (b) No Limited Dividend Distributions may be made when: (i) a default or an Event of 

Default has occurred and is continuing under this Agreement; (ii) there has been failure to comply 

with the Subsidizing Agency’s notice of any reasonable requirement for adequate (as determined 

by the Subsidizing Agency using its reasonable discretion) maintenance of the Development in 

order to continue to provide decent, good quality and safe affordable housing; or (iii) prior to the 

expiration of the Term hereof, there is outstanding against all or any part of the Development any 

lien or security interest other than a lien securing the Loan or a lien expressly permitted by the 

Subsidizing Agency or Lender.   

 

(c) Subject to the provisions set forth above, Limited Dividend Distributions may only 

be made to the Developer from Surplus Cash, provided that no Limited Dividend Distribution for 

any Fiscal Year may exceed ten percent (10%) of Developer's Equity.  

 

“Surplus Cash”, which is a balance sheet calculation, represents the long-term 

accumulation of working capital from the Development’s revenues that is available at the end of 

any quarter in a given Fiscal Year to make: (i) Limited Dividend Distributions; (ii) deposits into 

the Excess Equity Account; and (iii), if necessary, a distribution to the Municipality for the purpose 

of developing and/or preserving Affordable Housing.  The calculation of Surplus Cash is more 



11 

fully detailed in Part A of the current “M.G.L. Ch. 40B RENTAL DEVELOPMENTS / 

Instructions for Use of Calculation Tool for Computation of Excess Equity and Limited Dividend 

Distributions” (as it exists as the date hereof) available from the Subsidizing Agency and which 

currently is the form to be used in the preparation of the Audited Annual Limited Dividend 

Financial Report. 

 

(d) For the purposes hereof the initial amount of "Developer’s Equity" shall be $_____, 

subject to adjustment as provided herein.  The initial amount of "Developer’s Equity" is established 

at the time of Final Approval based on the Developer’s projection pursuant to the Cost Method as 

defined below.  This initial amount shall be adjusted and verified at the time of Cost Certification 

with respect to the construction of the Development in accordance with the “Inter-Agency 40B 

Rental Cost Certification Guidance for Owners, Certified Public Accountants and Municipalities” 

(as it may be amended, revised or replaced) as the greater of the amounts determined by (a) the 

“Cost Method” or (b) the “Value Method.”  For purposes hereof the term “Cost Method” is defined 

as (i) actual cash contributed by the Developer to the Development, including tax credit equity (if 

applicable) plus (ii) the deferred portion of the maximum allowable developer fee determined in 

accordance with EOHLC policy, provided that any payment of such deferred fee from project cash 

flow is treated as a Distribution Payment in accordance with Section 7 hereof, plus (iii) the 

appraised “as-is” market value of the land that exceeds the actual purchase price paid by the 

Developer for said land, if any, or less (iv) the actual purchase price paid  by the Developer for 

said land that exceeds the appraised “as is” market value of the land, if any. For purposes hereof 

the term “Value Method” is defined as (i) the as-complete and stabilized appraised market value 

of the Development, as determined by an independent appraisal commissioned by the Subsidizing 

Agency in accordance with this Section 7(d), less (ii) the sum of secured debt on the Development 

plus public equity, whether structured as a grant or loan, as determined by the Subsidizing Agency.   

 

 Thereafter, Developer’s Equity may be adjusted not more than once in any five year period 

with the first five - year period commencing with the first Fiscal Year of the Development.  Any 

adjustments shall be made only upon the written request of the Developer.  Unless the Developer 

is otherwise directed by the Subsidizing Agency, the initial appraised market value and any 

adjustment  thereto shall be based upon an appraisal commissioned by (and naming as a client) the 

Subsidizing Agency and prepared by an independent and qualified appraiser prequalified by, and 

randomly assigned to the Development by, the Subsidizing Agency.  The appraiser shall submit a 

Self-Contained Appraisal Report to the Subsidizing Agency in accordance with the Uniform 

Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP).  The costs of such appraisal shall be borne 

by the Developer.  Such appraisal shall use assumptions subject to the reasonable approval of the 

Subsidizing Agency. 

 

Upon completion of an appraisal as provided above, the Developer’s Equity shall be 

adjusted to equal the appraised value of the Development as determined by the appraisal less the 

unpaid principal amount of the sum of secured debt on the Development plus public equity, 

whether structured as a grant or loan determined as of the date of the appraisal.  Such new 

Developer’s Equity shall be the Developer’s Equity as of the date of such appraisal.  

 

(e) In the event that the amount available for Limited Dividend Distributions in a given 

Fiscal Year exceeds the Limited Dividend Distribution permitted for such Fiscal Year pursuant to 



12 

Section 7(c) above, such excess shall be deposited and administered in accordance with Section 

7(f) below.  Amounts deposited into the Excess Equity Account may, subject to subsections (a) 

through (c) above, and pursuant to the Subsidizing Agency’s Limited Dividend Policy, be 

distributed by the Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable) to the Developer in amounts 

equal to the difference between the amount by which Limited Dividend Distributions actually 

made in any prior Fiscal Year were less than the amount permitted to be distributed under Section 

7(c) hereof for such Fiscal Year.  In the event that Surplus Cash is insufficient to allow the 

Developer to take its Limited Dividend Distribution as permitted herein and there are funds in the 

Excess Equity Account, Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable) may distribute to the 

Developer an amount equal to the unpaid portion of the permitted Limited Dividend Distribution 

for such Fiscal Year, provided that, in no event shall the amount so distributed exceed the amount 

available in the Excess Equity Account. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the amount available for Limited Dividend 

Distributions in a given Fiscal Year exceeds the Limited Dividend Distribution permitted for such 

Fiscal Year pursuant to Section 7(c) above, the amount of any such excess may be applied to pay, 

with simple interest, the amount by which Limited Dividend Distributions made in any of the 

preceding Fiscal Years were less than the amount permitted to be paid under Section 7(c) hereof 

for such Fiscal Years, subject to the provisions of subsections (a) through (c) above. 

 

(f) Any amounts available for a Limited Dividend Distribution which may not be 

distributed in any year pursuant to the provisions of Section 7(c) above ("Excess Equity"), shall 

be deposited in the Excess Equity Account with the Lender (or if the Loan is paid off, with the 

Subsidizing Agency).  No distributions may be made to the Developer from the Excess Equity 

Account except those permitted pursuant to Section 7(e) and (f) hereof.  Upon the occurrence of 

an Event of Default under this Agreement or the Mortgage, the Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, 

as applicable) may apply any amounts in the Excess Equity Account to the payment of all or any 

portion of the debt secured by the Mortgage.   

 

Upon the Developer’s written request, amounts may also be withdrawn from the Excess 

Equity Account by the Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable) during the Term hereof 

and applied for any purpose described in Section 7(i) hereof or for any purpose (i) that provides a 

direct and material benefit to Low or Moderate Income Tenants; (ii) that reduces rent charged to 

Low or Moderate Income Tenants; (iii) that extends the affordability of the Development; or (iv) 

that provides relocation and transitional assistance to Low or Moderate Income Tenants as 

described in Section 6 hereof. 

 

To the extent that the Term of this Agreement extends beyond satisfaction in full of the 

debt secured by the Mortgage, the Subsidizing Agency may, in its sole discretion, during the 

remaining Term, make amounts available from the Excess Equity Account to: (a) pay all or a 

portion of the annual monitoring fee that remains outstanding thirty (30) days after its due date, 

and/or (b) provide relocation and transitional assistance to tenants of Affordable Units.   

 

Upon the Developer’s written request, amounts may also be withdrawn from the Excess 

Equity Account during the Term hereof and applied for the following purposes: (i) payment of or 

adequate reserve for all sums due or currently required to be paid under the terms of the Mortgage; 



13 

(ii) payment of or adequate reserve for all reasonable and necessary operating expenses of the 

Development as reasonably determined by the Developer; (iii) deposit of all amounts as may be 

deposited in a reserve fund for capital replacements reasonably determined by the Developer to be 

sufficient to meet anticipated capital needs of the Development which may be held by Lender or a 

lending institution reasonably acceptable to the Subsidizing Agency and which reserves shall be 

used for capital expenditures for the Development reasonably determined to be necessary by the 

Developer; (iv) payments of operating expense loans made by the partners, managers or members 

of the Developer for Development expenses, provided that the Developer shall have obtained prior 

written approval for such loans from the applicable Lender (or, if there is no mortgage, or after 

discharge of the Mortgage, from the Subsidizing Agency) and shall have supplied the applicable 

Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency ) with such evidence as the applicable Lender (or the 

Subsidizing Agency, as applicable) may reasonably request as to the application of the proceeds 

of such operating expense loans to the Development; or (v) for any other purposes, subject to a 

determination by the Lender (or, if there is no Mortgage, or the Mortgage is discharged during the 

Term of this Agreement, the reasonable determination by the Subsidizing Agency) that the 

expenditure is necessary to address the Development’s physical or financial needs and that no 

other Development reserve funds are available to address such needs.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, payment of the items set forth in clauses (i), (ii) and (iv) above by the Developer shall 

be subject to the prior written approval of the Subsidizing Agency, which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld or delayed; it being agreed by the Subsidizing Agency that if the Developer 

can demonstrate that its proposed operating expenditures and reserves are substantially consistent 

with those made for comparable developments within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the 

Subsidizing Agency shall approve such request.  Further, in no event shall such review or approval 

be required by the Subsidizing Agency to the extent any such capital expenditures or reserves are 

mandated by Lender.   

 

In any event, cash available for distribution in any year in excess of 20% of Developer’s 

Equity, subject to payment of a Limited Dividend Distribution pursuant to Section 7(c) hereof, 

shall be distributed to the Municipality within fifteen (15) business days of notice and demand 

given by the Subsidizing Agency as provided herein, or as otherwise directed by EOHLC.  Upon 

the expiration of the Limited Dividend Term (as defined in Section 22(b) hereof), any balance 

remaining in the Excess Equity Account shall (i) be contributed by the Developer to the 

replacement reserve held for the Development, if such contribution is deemed by the Subsidizing 

Agency (in its reasonable discretion) to be necessary, (ii) be distributed to the Subsidizing Agency 

for the purpose of developing and/or preserving affordable housing, or (iii) be distributed as 

otherwise directed by EOHLC. 

 
 (g) All funds in the Excess Equity Account shall be considered additional security for 

the performance of obligations of the Developer under the Mortgage and this Agreement and the 

Developer hereby pledges and grants to the Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable) a 

continuing security interest in said funds.  Furthermore, the Developer recognizes and agrees that 

(i) possession of said funds by the Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable) constitutes a 

bona fide pledge of said funds to the Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable) for security 

purposes, (ii) to the extent required by applicable law, this Agreement, in combination, as 

necessary, with other documents referred to herein, constitutes a valid and binding security 

agreement, and (iii) the validity and effectiveness of said pledge will not be compromised if said 



14 

funds are held in a bank or other financial institution.  The Developer further acknowledges and 

agrees that, notwithstanding any nomenclature or title given to the Excess Equity Account by the 

bank or other financial institution at which the Excess Equity Account is held, or the fact that the 

Developer’s tax identification number is used with respect to the Excess Equity Account, the 

Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable), and not the Developer, shall be the customer 

of the bank or other financial institution holding the Excess Equity Account; such bank or other 

financial institution shall comply with instructions originated by the Lender (or the Subsidizing 

Agency, as applicable) directing the disposition of funds in the Excess Equity Account, without 

further consent of the Developer; and the Lender (or the Subsidizing Agency, as applicable), and 

not the Developer, shall have the exclusive right to withdraw funds from the Excess Equity 

Account. 

 

 (h) Payment of fees and profits from capital sources for the initial development of the 

Development to the Developer and/or the Developer’s related party consultants, partners and legal 

or beneficial owners of the Development shall, be limited to no more than ten percent (10%) of 

Total Development Costs, net of (i) such fees and profits, and (ii) any working capital or reserves 

intended for operation of the Development and approved by the Subsidizing Agency.  Such limited 

payment of fees and profits shall not include fees or profits paid to any other party, whether or not 

related to the Developer, to the extent the same are arm’s length and commercially reasonable in 

light of the size and complexity of the Development.  The Developer shall comply with the 

requirements of Section 20 below regarding Cost Certification. In accordance with the 

requirements of 760 CMR 56.04(8)(e), in the event that the Subsidizing Agency determines, 

following examination of the Cost Certification submitted by the Developer pursuant to Section 

20 below, that amounts were paid or distributed by the Developer in excess of the above limitations 

(the “Excess Distributions”), the Developer shall pay over in full such Excess Distributions to the 

Municipality within fifteen (15) business days of notice and demand given by the Subsidizing 

Agency as provided herein. 

 

For the purposes hereof, the term “Total Development Costs” shall mean the total of all 

costs associated with acquisition, construction (including construction contingency), and general 

development (such as architectural, engineering, legal, and financing fees, insurance, real estate 

taxes and loan interest) for the Development.  Total Development Costs include (i) developer 

overhead and developer fees, and (ii) any capitalized reserves intended for operation of the 

Development and approved by the Subsidizing Agency as being specifically excluded from the 

calculation of fees and profits payable from capital sources for the initial development of the 

Development.    

 

(i) The Developer shall apply Development Revenues in the following order of 

priority: (x) payment of or adequate reserve for all sums due or currently required to be paid under 

the terms of the Loan; and (y) payment of or adequate reserve for all reasonable and necessary 

expenses of the Development as identified below.  With respect to the application of Development 

Revenues as described above, the Developer agrees as follows: 

 

(i) Payment for services, supplies, or materials shall not exceed the amount 

ordinarily and reasonably paid for such services, supplies, or materials in the area where 

the services are rendered or the supplies or materials furnished; 



15 

 

(ii) Reasonable and necessary expenses which may be payable pursuant to 

subsection (i), above, shall be directly related to the operation, maintenance or management 

of the Development; and 

 

(iii) Without the Subsidizing Agency’s prior written consent, the Developer may 

not assign, transfer, create a security interest in, dispose of, or encumber any Development 

Revenues except in connection with the Construction Loan, the Permanent Loan and any 

refinancing thereof and as expressly permitted herein. 

 

(j) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, a 

distribution resulting from the proceeds of a sale or refinancing of the Development shall not be 

regulated by this Agreement.  A sale or refinancing shall not result in a new evaluation of 

Developer’s Equity.   
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT 

 

8. The Developer shall maintain the Development in good physical condition in accordance 

with the Subsidizing Agency’s requirements and standards and the requirements and standards of 

the Mortgage and any applicable Housing Subsidy Program.  The Developer shall provide for the 

management of the Development in a manner that is consistent with accepted practices and 

industry standards for the management of multi-family market rate rental housing. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Subsidizing Agency shall have no obligation hereunder, 

expressed or implied, to monitor or enforce any such standards or requirements and, further, the 

Subsidizing Agency has not reviewed nor approved the Plans and Specifications for compliance 

with federal, state or local codes or other laws.     

 

 

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF DEVELOPER ENTITY; RESTRICTIONS ON 

TRANSFERS 

 

9. Prior to Substantial Completion, the following actions, without limitation, shall be subject 

to the Subsidizing Agency’s prior written approval (which approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld, conditioned or delayed): 

 

(a) any change, substitution or withdrawal of any general partner, manager, or agent of the 

Developer; or 

 

(b) the conveyance, assignment, transfer, or relinquishment of a majority of the Beneficial 

Interests (herein defined) in Developer (except for such a conveyance, assignment, transfer or 

relinquishment among holders of Beneficial Interests as of the date of this Agreement).   

 

For purposes hereof, the term "Beneficial Interest" shall mean: (i) with respect to a 

partnership, any limited partnership interests or other rights to receive income, losses, or a return 

on equity contributions made to such partnership; (ii) with respect to a limited liability company, 

any interests as a member of such company or other rights to receive income, losses, or a return 



16 

on equity contributions made to such company; or (iii) with respect to a company or corporation, 

any interests as an officer, board member or stockholder of such company or corporation to receive 

income, losses, or a return on equity contributions made to such company or corporation;    

 

(c) the sale, conveyance, transfer, ground lease, or exchange of the Developer’s interest in 

the Development or any part of the Development. 

 

Prior to any transfer of ownership of the Development or any portion thereof or a Beneficial 

Interest therein, the Developer agrees to secure from the transferee a written agreement stating that 

the transferee will assume in full the Developer's obligations and duties under this Agreement. 

 

 

10.  After Substantial Completion, Developer shall provide the Subsidizing Agency with thirty 

(30) days’ prior written notice, of any sale, conveyance, transfer, ground lease or exchange of the 

Developer’s interest in the Development or any part of the Development, but no consent shall be 

required.  As in Section 9 above, prior to any transfer of ownership of the Development or any 

portion thereof or interest therein, the Developer agrees to secure from the transferee a written 

agreement stating that the transferee will assume in full the Developer's obligations and duties 

under this Agreement. 

 

 

 

BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

11. All records, accounts, books, tenant lists, applications, waiting lists, documents, and 

contracts relating to the Developer’s compliance with the requirements of this Agreement shall at 

all times be kept separate and identifiable from any other business of the Developer which is 

unrelated to the Development, and shall be maintained, as required by applicable regulations 

and/or guidelines issued by EOHLC and/or the Subsidizing Agency from time to time, in a 

reasonable condition for proper audit and subject to examination during business hours by 

representatives of the Subsidizing Agency or EOHLC.  Failure to keep such books and accounts 

and/or make them available to the Subsidizing Agency or EOHLC will be an Event of Default 

hereunder. 

 

 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

12. (a)  Within ninety (90) days following the end of each Fiscal Year of the Development, 

the Developer shall furnish the Subsidizing Agency with a complete annual financial report for the 

Development based upon an examination of the books and records of the Developer containing a 

detailed, itemized statement of all income and expenditures, prepared and certified by a certified 

public accountant in accordance with the reasonable requirements of the Subsidizing Agency 

which include: (i) financial statements submitted in a format acceptable to the Subsidizing Agency; 

(ii) the financial report on an accrual basis and in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles applied on a consistent basis; and (iii) amounts available for distribution under Section 



17 

7 above.  A duly authorized agent of the Developer must approve such submission in writing.  The 

provisions of this paragraph may be waived or modified by the Subsidizing Agency.  

 

(b) In addition to the financial information required to be furnished by the Developer 

to the Subsidizing Agency pursuant to Section 12(a) above, the Developer shall furnish to the 

Subsidizing Agency, within ninety (90) days of the end of its Fiscal Year, an Audited Annual 

Limited Dividend Financial Report (including a certificate from the independent certified public 

accountant (the “CPA”) who prepared the Developer’s audited financial statements) in the form 

then required by the Subsidizing Agency.  The Subsidizing Agency’s agreement to waive or 

modify the requirement of an Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report for a given 

Fiscal Year shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver or modification of the requirement of an 

Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report for any subsequent Fiscal Year.  Should the 

Developer  fail in any given year to comply with its obligations under this subparagraph, the 

Developer acknowledges and agrees that such failure constitutes a knowing waiver and 

relinquishment of any Limited Dividend Distributions to which it might otherwise be entitled for 

such Fiscal Year pursuant to Sections 7(c) and/or 7(e) above. 

 

(c) Such Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report shall be accompanied by 

a Certificate of Developer (in the form as then reasonably required by the Subsidizing Agency) 

certifying to the Developer’s best knowledge and belief, under the pains and penalties of perjury, 

as to matters such as, without limitation, the fact that (i) the Developer has made available all 

necessary financial records and related data to the CPA who prepared the Audited Annual Limited 

Dividend Financial Report, (ii) there are no material transactions related to the Development that have 

not been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying the Audited Annual Limited 

Dividend Financial Report, (iii) the Developer has no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud 

affecting the entity involving management, subcontractors, employees who have significant roles in 

internal control, or others where the fraud could have a material effect on the Audited Annual Limited 

Dividend Financial Report and has no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 

affecting the Developer or the Development received in communications from employees, former 

employees, subcontractors, regulators, or others, and (iv) the Developer has reviewed the information 

presented in the Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report and believes that such 

determination is an appropriate representation of the Development. 

 

(d)  The Subsidizing Agency shall have sixty (60) days after the delivery of the Audited 

Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report to accept it, to make its objections in writing to the 

Developer and the Developer’s CPA, or to request from the Developer and/or CPA additional 

information regarding it.  If the Subsidizing Agency does not object to the Audited Annual Limited 

Dividend Financial Report or request additional information with respect to it, the Audited Annual 

Limited Dividend Financial Report shall have been deemed accepted by the Subsidizing Agency.  

If the Subsidizing Agency shall request additional information, then the Developer shall provide 

the Subsidizing Agency with such additional information as promptly as possible and the 

Subsidizing Agency shall have an additional thirty (30) days thereafter to review such information 

and either accept or raise objections to such Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report.  

If no such objections are made within such thirty day (30) period, the Audited Annual Limited 

Dividend Financial Report shall be deemed accepted by the Subsidizing Agency.  

 



18 

To the extent that the Subsidizing Agency shall raise any objections to such Audited 

Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report as provided above, then the Developer and the 

Subsidizing Agency shall consult in good faith and seek to resolve such objections within an 

additional thirty (30) day period.  If any objections are not resolved during such period, then the 

Subsidizing Agency may enforce the provisions under this Section 12 by the exercise of any 

remedies it may have under this Agreement.  

 

(e)  If upon the acceptance of an Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report as 

provided above, such Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report shall show that the 

aggregate Distribution Payments to the Developer during the applicable Fiscal Year exceed the 

allowable Limited Dividend Distribution for the Developer, then upon thirty (30) days written 

notice from the Subsidizing Agency, the Developer shall cause such excess to be deposited in the 

Excess Equity Account from sources other than Development Revenues to the extent not otherwise 

required by the Lender to remain with the Development. 

 

If such Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report as accepted shall show that 

there are Development Revenues which are in excess of the allowable Limited Dividend 

Distribution which the Developer has not distributed (“Excess Development Revenues”), such 

amounts shall be applied as provided in Section 7(e) above within thirty (30) days after the 

acceptance of the Audited Annual Limited Dividend Financial Report as set forth in subsection (d) 

above. 

 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OCCUPANCY REPORTS 

 

13. At the request of the Subsidizing Agency, the Developer shall furnish financial statements 

and occupancy reports and shall give specific answers to questions upon which information is 

reasonably desired from time to time relative to the ownership and operation of the Development.  

The Developer covenants and agrees to secure and maintain on file for inspection and copying by 

the Subsidizing Agency such information, reports and certifications as the Subsidizing Agency 

may reasonably require in writing in order to insure that the restrictions contained herein are being 

complied with.  The Developer further covenants and agrees to submit to the Subsidizing Agency 

annually, or more frequently if required in writing by the Subsidizing Agency, reports detailing 

such facts as the Subsidizing Agency reasonably determines are sufficient to establish compliance 

with the restrictions contained hereunder, copies of leases for all Affordable Units, and a 

certification by the Developer that, to the best of its knowledge, the restrictions contained herein 

are being complied with.  The Developer further covenants and agrees promptly to notify the 

Subsidizing Agency if the Developer discovers noncompliance with any restrictions hereunder. 

 

 

 

 

NO CHANGE OF DEVELOPMENT'S USE 

 

14. Except to the extent permitted by the Comprehensive Permit, as it may be amended 

pursuant to the Comprehensive Permit Rules, the Developer shall not change the type or number 



19 

of Affordable Units without prior written approval of the Subsidizing Agency and an amendment 

to this Agreement.  Except to the extent permitted by applicable zoning requirements then in effect, 

the Developer shall not permit the use of the dwelling accommodations of the Development for 

any purpose except residences and any other use permitted by the Comprehensive Permit. 

 

 

NO DISCRIMINATION 

 

15. (a) There shall be no discrimination upon the basis of race, color, disability, religion, 

sex, familial status, sexual orientation, national origin, genetic information, ancestry, children, 

marital status, public assistance recipiency or any other basis prohibited by law in the lease, use, 

or occupancy of the Development (provided that if the Development qualifies as elderly housing 

under applicable state and federal law, occupancy may be restricted to the elderly in accordance 

with said laws) or in connection with the employment or application for employment of persons 

for the construction, operation and management of the Development.   

 

 (b) There shall be full compliance with the provisions of all state or local laws 

prohibiting discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, disability, religion, sex, familial 

status, sexual orientation, national origin, genetic information, ancestry, children, marital status, 

public assistance recipiency or any other basis prohibited by law, and providing for 

nondiscrimination and equal opportunity in housing, including without limitation in the 

implementation of any local preference established under the Comprehensive Permit. Failure or 

refusal to comply with any such provisions shall be a proper basis for the Subsidizing Agency to 

take any corrective action it may deem necessary including, without limitation, referral to EOHLC 

for enforcement. 

 

 

DEFAULTS; REMEDIES 

 

16.  (a)  If any default, violation, or breach of any provision of this Agreement is not cured 

to the satisfaction of the Subsidizing Agency within thirty (30) days after the giving of notice to 

the Developer as provided herein, then at the Subsidizing Agency's option, and without further 

notice, the Subsidizing Agency may either terminate this Agreement, or the Subsidizing Agency 

may apply to any state or federal court for specific performance of this Agreement, or the 

Subsidizing Agency may exercise any other remedy at law or in equity or take any other action as 

may be necessary or desirable to correct noncompliance with this Agreement.  No party other than 

the Subsidizing Agency or its designee shall have the right to enforce the Developer’s compliance 

with the requirements of this Agreement.  The thirty (30) day cure period set forth in this paragraph 

shall be extended for such period of time as may be necessary to cure a default so long as the 

Developer is diligently prosecuting such a cure. 

 

 (b)  If the Subsidizing Agency elects to terminate this Agreement as the result of an 

uncured breach, violation, or default hereof, then whether the Affordable Units continue to be 

included in the Subsidized Housing Inventory maintained by EOHLC for purposes of the Act shall 

from the date of such termination be determined solely by EOHLC rules and regulations then in 

effect. 



20 

 

 (c) In the event the Subsidizing Agency or its designee brings an action to enforce this 

Agreement, unless the Developer prevails in such action the Developer shall pay all fees and 

expenses (including legal fees) of the Subsidizing Agency and/or its designee.  In such event, the 

Subsidizing Agency and/or its designee shall be entitled to seek recovery of its respective fees and 

expenses incurred in enforcing this Agreement against the Developer and to assert a lien on the 

Development, junior to the lien securing the Loan, to secure payment by the Developer of such 

fees and expenses.  The Subsidizing Agency and its designee may perfect a lien on the 

Development by recording/filing in the Registry one or more certificates setting forth the amount 

of the costs and expenses due and owing.  

 

(d) The Developer hereby grants to the Subsidizing Agency or its designee the right to 

enter upon the Development for the purpose of enforcing the terms of this Agreement, or of taking 

all actions with respect to the Development which the Subsidizing Agency may determine to be 

necessary or appropriate to prevent, remedy or abate any violation of this Agreement. 

MONITORING AGENT; FEES; SUCCESSOR SUBSIDIZING AGENCY 

17. The Subsidizing Agency intends to monitor the Developer’s compliance with the 

requirements of this Agreement. The Developer hereby agrees to pay the Subsidizing Agency fees 

as partial compensation for its services hereunder, as set forth on Appendix B hereto, initially in 

the amounts and on the dates therein provided, and hereby grants to the Subsidizing Agency a 

security interest in Development Revenues as security for the payment of such fees subject to the 

lien of the Mortgage and this Agreement shall constitute a security agreement with respect thereto. 

18. The Subsidizing Agency shall have the right to engage a third party (the “Monitoring 

Agent”) to monitor compliance with all or a portion of the ongoing requirements of this 

Agreement.  The Subsidizing Agency shall notify the Developer and the Municipality in the event 

the Subsidizing Agency engages a Monitoring Agent, and in such event (i) as partial compensation 

for providing these services, the Developer hereby agrees to pay to the Monitoring Agent an annual 

monitoring fee in an amount reasonably determined by the Subsidizing Agency, payable within 

thirty (30) days of the end of each Fiscal Year of the Developer during the Term of this Agreement, 

but not in excess of the amounts as shown on Appendix B hereto and any fees payable under 

Section 17 hereof shall be net of such fees payable to a Monitoring Agent; and (ii) the Developer 

hereby agrees that the Monitoring Agent shall have the same rights, and be owed the same duties, 

as the Subsidizing Agency under this Agreement, and shall act on behalf of the Subsidizing Agency 

hereunder, to the extent that the Subsidizing Agency delegates its rights and duties by written 

agreement with the Monitoring Agent.  The Monitoring Agent shall apply and adhere to the 

applicable standards, guidance and policies of EOHLC relating to the administrative 

responsibilities of subsidizing agencies where available, and otherwise shall apply and adhere to 

the standards and practices of the Subsidizing Agency where applicable. 

CONSTRUCTION AND FINAL COST CERTIFICATION 

19.  The Developer shall provide to the Subsidizing Agency evidence that the final plans and 

specifications for the Development comply with the requirements of the Comprehensive Permit 

and that the Development was built substantially in accordance with such plans and specifications.  



21 

Upon Substantial Completion, the Developer shall provide the Subsidizing Agency with a 

certificate of the architect for the Development in the form of a “Certificate of Substantial 

Completion” (AIA Form G704) or such other form of completion certificate acceptable to the 

Subsidizing Agency. 

 

As used herein, the term “Substantial Completion” shall mean the time when the 

construction of the Development is sufficiently complete so that all of the units may be occupied 

and amenities may be used for their intended purpose, except for designated punch list items and 

seasonal work which does not interfere with the residential use of the Development. 

 

20. Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion, the Developer shall provide the 

Subsidizing Agency with its Cost Certification for the Development.  The Subsidizing Agency 

may allow additional time for submission of the Cost Certification if significant issues are 

determined to exist which prevent the timely submission of the Cost Certification, and may in 

certain circumstances (such as a halt in construction for a significant period of time) require 

submission of an interim Cost Certification within ninety (90) days of written notice to the 

Developer.   

 

For the purposes hereof the term “Cost Certification” shall mean the Developer’s 

documentation which will enable determination by the Subsidizing Agency of the aggregate 

amount of all Allowable Development Costs as a result of its review and approval of: (i) an 

itemized statement of Total Development Costs together with a statement of gross income from 

the Development received by the Developer to date, all in the format provided in the Subsidizing 

Agency’s Cost Examination Program, which Cost Certification must be examined (the “Cost 

Examination”) in accordance with the attestation standards of the American Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants (AICPA) by an independent certified public accountant (CPA) and (ii) an 

owner’s certificate, executed by the Developer under pains and penalties of perjury, which 

identifies the amount of the Construction Contract, the amount of any approved Change Orders, 

including a listing of such Change Orders, and any amounts due to subcontractors and/or suppliers.  

“Allowable Development Costs” shall mean any hard costs or soft costs paid or incurred with 

respect to Development as determined by and in accordance with the Guidelines. 

 

21.  In order to ensure that the Developer shall complete the Cost Certification as and when 

required by Section 20 hereof and, if applicable, pay any Excess Distributions to the Municipality, 

the Developer has provided the Subsidizing Agency with adequate financial surety (the “Surety”) 

provided through a letter of credit, bond or cash payment in the amounts and in accordance with 

the Comprehensive Permit Rules and in a form approved by the Subsidizing Agency.  If the 

Subsidizing Agency shall determine that the Developer has failed in its obligation to provide Cost 

Certification as and when described above or to pay over to the Municipality any Excess 

Distributions, the Subsidizing Agency may draw on such Surety in order to pay the costs of 

completing Cost Certification and/or paying such Excess Distribution amounts due plus reasonable 

attorneys fees and collections costs. 

 

TERM 

 



22 

22. (a)  This Agreement shall bind, and the benefits shall inure to, respectively, the 

Developer and its successors and assigns, and the Subsidizing Agency and its successors and 

assigns, until the date which is thirty (30) years from the date hereof (the “Term”).  Upon expiration 

of the Term, this Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Subsidizing Agency hereunder 

shall automatically terminate without the need of either party executing any additional document. 

The rights and obligations of the Developer and of the Subsidizing Agency under this Agreement 

shall continue for the Term, regardless of whether the loan from the NEF Lender is still 

outstanding. Prior to the expiration of the Term, the Developer shall enter into a use agreement 

with the Municipality, or as otherwise required by the Comprehensive Permit Rules, ensuring that 

the Development will comply with the continued affordability requirements applicable to the 

Development.  

 

 (b) Notwithstanding subsection (a) above, the provisions of Section 7 herein shall bind, 

and the benefits shall inure to, respectively, Developer and its successors and assigns, and the 

Subsidizing Agency and its successors and assigns, and the Municipality and its successors and 

assigns, until the date which is the later of (i) the expiration of the term of the Loan or (ii) fifteen 

(15) years from the date of Substantial Completion  (the “Limited Dividend Term”). 

 

INDEMNIFICATION/LIMITATION ON LIABILITY 

 

23.  The Developer, for itself and its successors and assigns, agrees to indemnify and hold 

harmless the Subsidizing Agency and any Monitoring Agent against all damages, costs and 

liabilities, including reasonable attorney’s fees, asserted against the Subsidizing Agency or the 

Monitoring Agent by reason of its relationship to the Development under this Agreement and not 

involving the Subsidizing Agency or the Monitoring Agent acting in bad faith or with gross 

negligence. 

 

24. The Subsidizing Agency shall not be held liable for any action taken or omitted under this 

Agreement so long as it shall have acted in good faith and without gross negligence.  

 

25. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, no affiliate and no partner, 

manager, or member of the Developer or affiliate and no officer, director, shareholder, trustee, 

member, manager, agent, or employee of the Developer or affiliate or of any partner, manager, or 

member thereof shall have any personal liability for the payment of any sum of money that is, or 

may become, payable by the Developer under or pursuant to this Agreement or for the performance 

of any obligation by the Developer arising pursuant to this Agreement, and the Subsidizing Agency 

shall look only to the Developer’s interest in the Development for such payment or performance. 

 

Nothing herein shall preclude the Subsidizing Agency from asserting such claims as it may 

have at law or in equity against the Developer for any loss or damage the Subsidizing Agency 

actually suffers as a result of any of the following: 

 

(i)         a willful breach of the provisions limiting payments or distributions to 

partners, members, managers, or affiliates as set forth in this Agreement; or 

 

(ii)        intentional fraud committed Developer; or 



23 

 

(iii)       a willful breach of a Developer warranty contained in this Agreement or a 

false representation of a material fact which was known to be false when made; or 

 

(iv)       a false representation knowingly made  that the individual signing this 

Agreement on behalf of the Developer has legal capacity and is authorized to sign this 

Agreement on behalf of the entity on whose behalf such individual has signed. 

 

Nothing contained in the provisions of this Section 25 or elsewhere shall limit: (i) the right 

of the Subsidizing Agency to obtain injunctive relief or to pursue equitable remedies under this 

Agreement, excluding only any injunctive relief ordering payment of obligations by any person or 

entity for which personal liability does not otherwise exist; or (ii) the liability of any attorney, law 

firm, architect, accountant or other professional who or which renders or provides any written 

opinion or certificate to the Subsidizing Agency in connection with the Development even though 

such person or entity may be an agent or employee of the Developer or of any partner, manager, 

or member thereof. 

 

CASUALTY 

 

26. Subject to the rights of the Lender, the Developer agrees that if the Development, or any 

part thereof, shall be damaged or destroyed or shall be condemned or acquired for public use, the 

Developer shall have the right, but not the obligation, to repair and restore the Development to 

substantially the same condition as existed prior to the event causing such damage or destruction, 

or to relieve the condemnation, and thereafter to operate the Development in accordance with the 

terms of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a casualty in which some 

but not all of the buildings in the Development are destroyed, if such destroyed buildings are not 

restored by the Developer then the Developer shall be required to maintain the same percentage of 

Affordable Units of the total number of units in the Development.   

 

DEVELOPER’S REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES 

 

27. The Developer hereby represents, covenants and warrants as follows: 

 

 (a) The Developer (i) is a _Limited Liability Company __ duly organized under, and 

is qualified to transact business under, the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, (ii) has 

the power and authority to own its properties and assets and to carry on its business as now being 

conducted, and (iii) has the full legal right, power and authority to execute and deliver this 

Agreement. 

        

 (b) The execution and performance of this Agreement by the Developer (i) will not 

violate or, as applicable, has not violated any provision of law, rule or regulation, or any order of 

any court or other agency or governmental body, and (ii) will not violate or, as applicable, has not 

violated any provision of any indenture, agreement, mortgage, mortgage note, or other instrument 

to which the Developer is a party or by which it or the Development is bound, and (iii) will not 

result in the creation or imposition of any prohibited encumbrance of any nature. 

 



24 

 (c) The Developer will, at the time of execution and delivery of this Agreement, have 

good and marketable title to the premises constituting the Development free and clear of any lien 

or encumbrance (subject to encumbrances created pursuant to this Agreement, and any other 

documents executed in connection with the loan from the NEF Lender, or other encumbrances 

permitted by the Subsidizing Agency). 

 

 (d) There is no action, suit or proceeding at law or in equity or by or before any 

governmental instrumentality or other agency now pending, or, to the knowledge of the Developer, 

threatened against or affecting it, or any of its properties or rights, which, if adversely determined, 

would materially impair its right to carry on business substantially as now conducted (and as now 

contemplated by this Agreement) or would materially adversely affect its financial condition. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

 

28. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except with the written consent of the 

Subsidizing Agency or its successors and assigns and Developer or its successors and assigns. 

 

29. The Developer warrants that it has not, and will not, execute any other agreement with 

provisions contradictory to, or in opposition to, the provisions hereof, and that, in any event, the 

requirements of this Agreement are paramount and controlling as to the rights and obligations set 

forth and supersede any other requirements in conflict therewith. 

 

30. The invalidity of any clause, part or provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity 

of the remaining portions thereof. 

 

31. Any titles or captions contained in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not be 

deemed a part of this Agreement or play any role in the construction or interpretation hereof. 

 

32. Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include correlative words 

of the feminine and neuter genders.  Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing 

the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and words importing persons 

shall include corporations and associations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons. 

 

33.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement have been freely accepted by the parties.  The 

provisions and restrictions contained herein exist to further the mutual purposes and goals of 

EOHLC, the Subsidizing Agency, the Municipality and the Developer set forth herein to create 

and preserve access to land and to decent and affordable rental housing opportunities for eligible 

families who are often denied such opportunities for lack of financial resources. 

 

 

NOTICES 

 

34. Any notice or other communication in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing 

and (i) deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, or (ii) 

hand delivered by any commercially recognized courier service or overnight delivery service, such 



25 

as Federal Express, or (iii) sent by facsimile transmission if a fax number is designated below, 

addressed as follows: 

 

If to the Developer:  

 

_Groveland Realty Trust, LLC__   

_Attn: William Daley___________   

_7 Hemlock Lane 

  Groveland, MA 01834 

Tel: 978-820-0227 

Email: bill@rdsitedevelopment.com 

 

  with copies by regular mail or such hand delivery 

  [or facsimile transmission] to: 

 

__________________   

__________________   

__________________ 

 

 

  If to the Subsidizing Agency: 

 

  Massachusetts Housing Finance Agency 

  One Beacon Street 

  Boston, MA  02108      

  Attention: Manager of Planning and Programs  

  Fax:  617-854-1029   

 

Any such addressee may change its address for such notices to any other address in the 

United States as such addressee shall have specified by written notice given as set forth above. 

 

A notice shall be deemed to have been given, delivered and received upon the earliest of:  

(i) if sent by certified or registered mail, on the date of actual receipt (or tender of delivery and 

refusal thereof) as evidenced by the return receipt; or (ii) if hand delivered by such courier or 

overnight delivery service, when so delivered or tendered for delivery during customary business 

hours on a business day at the specified address; or (iii) if facsimile transmission is a permitted 

means of giving notice, upon receipt as evidenced by confirmation.  Notice shall not be deemed to 

be defective with respect to the recipient thereof for failure of receipt by any other party. 

 

 

RECORDING 

 

35. Upon execution, the Developer shall immediately cause this Agreement and any 

amendments hereto to be recorded or filed with the Registry, and the Developer shall pay all fees 

and charges incurred in connection therewith.  Upon recording or filing, as applicable, the 

Developer shall immediately transmit to the Subsidizing Agency and the Monitoring Agent, if any, 



26 

evidence of such recording or filing including the date and instrument, book and page or registra-

tion number of the Agreement. 

 

 

GOVERNING LAW 

 

36. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  

Any amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and executed by all of the parties hereto.  

The invalidity of any clause, part, or provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of 

the remaining portions hereof. 

 

 

CONFLICT; PRIORITY OF AGREEMENT 

 

37.      In the event of any conflict or inconsistency (including without limitation more restrictive 

terms) between the terms of the Comprehensive Permit, any other document relating to the 

Development and the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control. 

 

      This Agreement is senior to the Mortgage and to any other mortgage encumbering the 

Development.  Furthermore, the Developer understands and agrees that, in the event of foreclosure 

of the Mortgage and the exercise by the Lender of the power of sale therein, the Development will 

be sold subject to the restrictions imposed hereby.  The Developer acknowledges that any 

discharge or termination of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 

Comprehensive Permit or the obligations of the Developer to comply with the provisions thereof. 

 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 



27 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be signed and sealed 

by their respective, duly authorized representatives, as of the day and year first written above. 

 

      DEVELOPER: 

 

 

By:  _________________________________ 

        Name: William M. Daley 

        Title:  Manager 

 

       

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

County of ______________, ss.       

 

On this __ day of __________, 20__, before me, the undersigned notary public, ___________ 

personally appeared, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which was: [ ] 

at least one current document issued by a federal or state government agency bearing the 

photographic image of the signatory’s face and signature, [ ] the oath or affirmation of a credible 

witness unaffected by the document or transaction who is personally known to me and who 

personally knows the signatory, or [ ] identification of the signatory based on my personal 

knowledge of the identity of the signatory, to be the person whose name is signed on the preceding 

or attached document, and acknowledged to me that [he][she] signed it voluntarily for its stated 

purpose, as [ [general] partner for ____________, a partnership // ____________ for 

______________, a corporation // [manager/managing member] for ______________, a limited 

liability company // ____________ for ______________, a _______________]. [enter 

appropriate information depending on entity structure] 

 

 

______________________________ 

Notary Public 

       My Commission Expires: 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

 

Acknowledgment of Zoning Board of Appeals                            

 

Exhibit A – Legal Description    

Appendix A – Rent Schedule  

Appendix B – Subsidizing Agency Fees 

  



28 

MASSACHUSETTS HOUSING  

      FINANCE AGENCY, as Subsidizing  

Agency as aforesaid 

 

 

      By:  _________________________________     

Jessica Malcolm, Manager 

Planning and Programs 

 

 

 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

County of ________________, ss.       

 

On this __ day of __________, 20__, before me, the undersigned notary public, ___________ 

personally appeared, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which was: [ ] 

at least one current document issued by a federal or state government agency bearing the 

photographic image of the signatory’s face and signature, [ ] the oath or affirmation of a credible 

witness unaffected by the document or transaction who is personally known to me and who 

personally knows the signatory, or [ ] identification of the signatory based on my personal 

knowledge of the identity of the signatory, to be the person whose name is signed on the preceding 

or attached document, and acknowledged to me that [he][she] signed it voluntarily for its stated 

purpose, as Manager of Planning and Programs of the Massachusetts Housing Finance Agency, a 

body politic and corporate organized and operated under the provisions of Chapter 708 of the Acts 

of 1966 of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as amended. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 



29 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 



30 

APPENDIX A 

RENT SCHEDULE (INITIAL) 

[Sample/Model] 
 

   Low/Moderate-Income 1  Market Rate 

   Rent Set at 30% of 80% AMI  Unrestricted 

   

Qualify with Incomes at or 

Below 80% of AMI 

  

 
Number of Bedrooms     1 BR 2 BR 3 BR   1 BR  2 BR 3 BR  

Number of Units     22 21 5  64 66 14 

Net SF/Unit     866 1,160 1,593  866 1,160 1,593 

Elev. (E) / Non-Elev. (N)     E E E  E E E 

            

Applicable Base/Gross Rent:     $1,834 $2,201 $2,543  $-,--- $-,--- $-,--- 

Per:   [Identify2] MSA or 

HMFA  

    HMFA HMFA HMFA     

            

Utility Allowance**     $156 $228 $299  N/A N/A N/A 

            

Tenant Rent*     $1,678 $1,973 $2,244  $1,900 $2,050 $2,300 

            
 

*  Tenant Rents are net of utility allowances.  The total of tenant rent and utility allowance may not exceed the 

Applicable Base/Gross Rent. 
 

**Utility Allowances are based on the attached schedule or matrix prepared by the  [Lynn] Housing Authority and 

dated ___12/01/2023______, as the same may be amended from time to time.  The dollar amount listed assumes 

the following utilities are to be paid by the tenant:  

 [Electric] Heat for the   [ e.g. “Low-Rise – Garden”]   Housing Type; 

 [Electric] Water Heating;  [Electric] Cooking Fuel; and Electricity, Water, Sewer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1 Maximum NEF Ch. 40B affordable unit Rent Limits are calculated based on 30% of the 80% of the Area Median 

Income (AMI) Limit as derived from income limits published annually by HUD.  Changes to the published income 

limits will result in changes to the rent limits. Unless subsidized under another housing subsidy program, the 80% of 

AMI Limit also is the standard used to qualify for occupancy at NEF Ch. 40B affordable housing developments. 
2 Identify subject income limit area, i.e. Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) or HUD Metro FMR Areas (HMFA)  – 

See “Area” definition. 



31 

APPENDIX B 

 

FEES PAYABLE TO SUBSIDIZING AGENCY 

 

 

• Masshousing NEF Rental Regulatory Agreement Affordability and Limited Dividend 

Monitoring Fees 
 

o Initial Fee Paid upon submission of the Final Approval Application to MassHousing 
▪ $ [955/affordable unit] 

 
o Annual Fee Payable at the time of Initial Occupancy and Annually thereafter 

▪ $[275.91 per affordable unit] per year.  
 

 

 



32 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

The undersigned duly authorized Chair and members of the _Groveland___ Zoning Board of 

Appeals hereby acknowledges that, after due consideration of the Developer’s request, pursuant 

to the requirements of 760 CMR 56.05(11), the Board hereby agrees that the foregoing Regulatory 

Agreement satisfies the requirements of the Comprehensive Permit as defined therein.  Without 

limiting the generality of the foregoing, the units in the Development required to be affordable 

under the Comprehensive Permit shall be affordable if such units are rented in accordance with 

Section 3, 4 and 5 of the foregoing Regulatory Agreement; any local preference set forth in the 

Comprehensive Permit shall be implemented only at initial rent-up and only to the extent in 

compliance with applicable state and federal fair housing rules; and compliance with the limited 

dividend requirement shall be determined solely by the Subsidizing Agency under the Regulatory 

Agreement using the standards of the Subsidizing Agency applicable to comprehensive permit 

projects in accordance with the Comprehensive Permit Rules. In addition, the conflict provision 

of the Regulatory Agreement shall control over any conflict provision of the Comprehensive 

Permit.  

 

 

______________________________________ 

Name: 

Chair, ____________ Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

Name: 

 

Name: 

 

Name: 

 

Name: 

 

 



33 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

County of ______________, ss.       

 

On this __ day of __________, 20__, before me, the undersigned notary public, ___________ 

personally appeared, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which was: [ ] 

at least one current document issued by a federal or state government agency bearing the 

photographic image of the signatory’s face and signature, [ ] the oath or affirmation of a credible 

witness unaffected by the document or transaction who is personally known to me and who 

personally knows the signatory, or [ ] identification of the signatory based on my personal 

knowledge of the identity of the signatory, to be the person whose name is signed on the preceding 

or attached document, and acknowledged to me that [he][she] signed it voluntarily for its stated 

purpose, as ____________, for the Town of ___________.  

 

 

______________________________ 

Notary Public 

       My Commission Expires: 

 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

The undersigned duly authorized Chair and members of the _Groveland___ Zoning Board of 

Appeals hereby acknowledges that, after due consideration of the Developer’s request, pursuant 

to the requirements of 760 CMR 56.05(11), the Board hereby agrees that the foregoing Regulatory 

Agreement satisfies the requirements of the Comprehensive Permit as defined therein.  Without 

limiting the generality of the foregoing, the units in the Development required to be affordable 

under the Comprehensive Permit shall be affordable if such units are rented in accordance with 

Section 3, 4 and 5 of the foregoing Regulatory Agreement; any local preference set forth in the 

Comprehensive Permit shall be implemented only at initial rent-up and only to the extent in 

compliance with applicable state and federal fair housing rules; and compliance with the limited 

dividend requirement shall be determined solely by the Subsidizing Agency under the Regulatory 

Agreement using the standards of the Subsidizing Agency applicable to comprehensive permit 

projects in accordance with the Comprehensive Permit Rules. In addition, the conflict provision 

of the Regulatory Agreement shall control over any conflict provision of the Comprehensive 

Permit.  

 

 

______________________________________ 

Name: 

Chair, ____________ Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

Name: 

 

Name: 

 

Name: 

 

Name: 

 

 

 



MEMO 
FROM: Annie Schindler 

Executive Coordinator 

TO: Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

RE: Sewell Street/Quarry Project Regulation Agreement Acknowledgement 
In reviewing these documents, I requested counsel also review them as well as I had some 
concerns. Counsel reviewed and notes that acknowledgement forms such as this can be 
problematic due to the last sentence which says that if there is a conflict between the 
Regulatory Agreement and the Comprehensive Permit, the Regulatory Agreement controls. 
In counsels experience, ZBAs declining to sign this hasn’t had consequences to the 
applicant or the Town with the project moving forward.  





























































Mass General Law (MGL) Chapter 40B, What You Need to Know 
To put it simply, MGL Chapter 40B is a state statue that allows Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) to 
approve affordable housing developments under more flexible rules than the Town’s Zoning Bylaws, 
if at least 20-25% of those units have long-term affordability restrictions. 

Developers are able to apply for a Comprehensive Permit (more on the application process below) 
and seek relief from some local zoning to create affordable multi-family housing in areas that towns 
sometimes don’t allow for that type of housing. Depending on the community’s Subsidized Housing 
Inventory, Towns may or may not be required to issue a Comprehensive Permit. A community can 
deny a Comprehensive Permit application if they are able to claim Safe Harbor, generally the 
easiest way to claim Safe Harbor is if the existing SHI is more than 10% of the total number of 
housing units reported in the most recent federal census. If a community does not have 10%, then 
they are required to hear and issue a Comprehensive Permit, unless the project has serious 
building and site design deficiencies that cannot be rectified with approval, concerns with the 
health and safety of residents of the proposed housing, etc. These concerns must be valid, 
compelling, and documented, otherwise it is very likely the Housing Appeals Committee (HAC) will 
overturn the denial.  

Please see the graphic below for more information on how the 40B process progresses with the 
Town. If you have any questions on this topic, please feel free to reach out to the Executive 
Coordinator, Annie Schindler – 978.556.7214 ashcindler@grovelandma.com.  

* Comprehensive Permit – A consolidated local review and approval process that empowers the 
ZBA to hold hearing and make decisions that encompass all local bylaws and regulations for low-or 
moderate-income housing.  

* Subsidized Housing Inventory – The list compiled by the Executive Office of Housing and Livable 
Communities that tracks the amount of Low- or Moderate-Income Housing in Town.  

* Safe Harbor – Conditions under which the ZBA’s decision to deny a Comprehensive Permit that 
will qualify as consistent with local needs and not be overturned by the Housing Appeals 
Committee. 

*  Housing Appeals Committee – Has the power to affirm, modify, or overturn local decisions.  

* Subsidizing Agency: MassHousing, Massachusetts Housing Partnership, Executive Office of 
Housing and Livable Communities, MassDevelopment. 

* Project Eligibility Letter Application: Shows pre-qualification requirements of the developer. 
Includes site location and description, proposed buildings and approximate number of units, 
conceptual plan, etc.   

 

 

 

mailto:ashcindler@grovelandma.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Eligibility 
Letter

• The Applicant submits a Project Eligibility Letter (PEL) Application to a 
Subsidizing Agency. 

• The Subsidizing Agency reviews the PEL for completeness.

Agency Notifies 
Local Officials

• If the Subsidizing Agency finds the application complete, they send out a "30-
day comment letter" to the municipality asking them to submit comments on 
the proposed development.

• The Agency scheudles a site visit and invites the municipality to addend.

Agency Issues a 
Project 

Eligibility Letter

• The Agency will review the PEL Application and  comments submitted by the 
municipality. 

• The Agency will issue a PEL if the agency can make the necessary findings 
outlined in the 40B Regulations (760 CMR 56.04 (4)). 

Developer 
Prepaeres 

Comprehensive 
Permit 

Application 

• Once the Developer receives their PEL, they can begin to prepare their 
Comprehensive Permit Application. This incudes addtional engineering, 
project design, traffic studies, etc. 

• The Developer can submit the Comprehensive Permit Application within two 
years of receiving their PEL.

Comprehensive 
Permit 

Application

• The Developer submits the Comprehensive Permit Application with the 
municipality. 

• At this time, the Town is able to apply for Technical Assistance with the Mass 
Housing Partnership. 

Comprehensive 
Permit Hearing

• A legal notice will be published in a local newspaper and abutters to the 
property will be notified by mail of the time and place of the first public hearing 
for the Comprehensive Permit Application. 

• The hearing takes place with the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
• The Board conducts the hearing, closes the public hearing, deliverates, and 

then issues a Comprehensive Permit Decision.

Final Approval

• Assuming a favorable Comprehensive Permit Decision and no appeal, the 
Developer prepares a Final Approval application and submits it to the 
Subsidizing Agency.

• Assuming the Subsidizing Agency approves the Final Approval application, the 
Developer prepares final engineering that satisfies the Comprehensive Permit 
Decision, and a building permit is issued.  



Christopher Goodwin, Chair  

Jason Naves 

John Stokes II 

Brad Ligols 

John Grohol 

 

 

 

 

Town of Groveland       
Zoning Board of Appeals          
183 Main Street        

Groveland, MA 01834       

 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 

May 1, 2024 

Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes 

 

 1 
 2 
 3 

 4 
Present: John Grohol, Chris Goodwin, Jason Naves, Brad Ligols, John Stokes II 5 
Absent:  6 
Staff Present: Annie Schindler (Town Planner & Conservation Agent) 7 
Public Present: Sarah Sheehan McGrath, Jay Ogden 8 
 9 
NOTE: Minutes are not a transcript. A video recording of this meeting can be found on the Towns 10 
YouTube page. 11 
 12 
MOTION: Ligols motions to open the meeting. Grohol seconds the motion. Voting aye; Grohol, Ligols, 13 
Goodwin, Naves, Stokes II. The motion passes unanimously. 14 
 15 
PUBLIC HEARING: 16 
NEW: Application #2024-6 441 MAIN STREET (ESTY PARK) – A public hearing in accordance 17 
with General Laws, Chapter 40A, as amended, for Application #2024-6 made by Esty Park Trust, Eric 18 
Harper Trustee, 8 Federal Way, Groveland MA for the premises located at 441 Main Street, Groveland, 19 
Map 24 Lot 9, located in the Residential 2 (R2) Zoning District to modify Special Permit #2014-4 to add 20 
an additional building to the Property. 21 
Goodwin: Reads the above notice. 22 
Ogden: I’m here as a representative for Esty Park Trust. As many of you know, Esty Park used to be a 23 
lumber park and hardware store. There were many uses there. Abutters at the time were apprehensive 24 
about the change of use so in 2017 there was a ZBA special permit that was issued to clarify the uses and 25 
operations. The property has been managed by Esty Park Trust for 10 years now and has been a good 26 
neighbor and a contributor to the local economy. We think this new building is within the parameters of 27 
the site and the previously established uses.  28 
Ligols: How many square feet of coverage are the existing buildings on the site? 29 
Ogden: The total area is 17 acres, there is approximately a little under 70,000 sqft of buildings existing, 30 
which is about 9.4% lot coverage, and the zone allows for 25%. 31 
Grohol: What is the occupancy rate of the Park? 32 
Ogden: This building is being built to accommodate a waitlist of people who would like to be there. 33 
Ligols: Is that going to reach the maximum outlined in the 2014 permit? 34 
Ogden: I believe that decision took the total of the buildings at the time and used that to establish a 35 
baseline, but that is subject to change depending on your prerogative. There was an additional permit that 36 
was issued in 2017 that separated the site into a Phase I and Phase II, I’m unclear whether anyone would 37 
think that Phase I & II have been initiated. Phase II was going to provide for an additional 17,000 sqft of 38 
building coverage. But those buildings have not been built.  39 
Goodwin: How many employees are there now? 40 
Odgen: I believe Esty Park employees three people, and then there are tenants. I’m not sure how many 41 
leased tenants there are.  42 
Goodwin: We’re looking to make sure that tenants have enough staff onsite.  43 
Ligols: What is the intent of the new building? 44 

Board/Committee Name: ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Date: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 PM 

Location: 183 Main Street, Groveland, MA 01834  

APPROVED X-X-2024  



 

 

Page 2 of 3 

May 1, 2024 

Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes 

 

Ogden: It was to provide 4 garage style bays to house commercial equipment of various types. It allows 45 
for commercial vehicles to be stored inside. Contractors, vehicle storage, electricians, plumbers, etc.  46 
Grohol: You mentioned something about a 2017 decision? You didn’t provide us with the 2017 decision.  47 
Ogden: There is some confusion about whether the 2017 decision is active. It established the existing 48 
buildings as Phase I and three new buildings, closest to Wharf Lane, as Phase II. This isn’t a replacement 49 
for Phase II, but it is a stopgap so that they don’t have to build Phase II. 50 
Goodwin: I would like to see the 2017 decision.  51 
Ogden: The 2017 decision wasn’t acted upon within 3 years, so it is no longer active.  52 
Grohol: Regardless of whether it is expired or not, it is important for context. Helps to see the whole 53 
picture. 54 
Planner: The decision is #2017-1.  55 
Ogden: The history of this is tumultuous. I have Application 2016-8 which was voted on, approved, and 56 
recorded, but then voided by land court, which is why I didn’t include that. The 2017 decision establishes 57 
a lot of the operations that were going on at the time.  58 
Naves: The 2017 decision, was any of this built? 59 
Ogden: I believe the new construction shown on that plan, the three buildings, is Phase II. Those three 60 
buildings have not been built.  61 
Ligols: The 2014 decision states that the maximum square footage is limited to 57,669 sqft, and existing 62 
on March 14th… 63 
Grohol: In the 2017 decision they approved 87,280 sqft of space. 64 
Ligols: But that doesn’t matter anymore because that permit has lapsed.  65 
Ogden: I should clarify that my statement that the permit has lapsed is one of those grey areas for special 66 
permits. The 2014 permit doesn’t provide for any construction, so it’s hard to say has the work begun? 67 
Because there is no real work detailed. It is just clarifying the uses that are ongoing. With Phase I which 68 
was ongoing it just consolidated and clarified the uses that were ongoing and for additional uses to be 69 
added on with Phase II.  70 
Sheehan McGrath: You’re saying there’s a maximum amount of three employees, but in the front office 71 
they are allowed to use that as an operating front to have business meetings in there. So, they are kind of 72 
running a business out of there which is a grey area that I don’t like. I don’t know if you’re aware of that. 73 
Ligols: They have a conference room people can rent and use? 74 
Goodwin: Yes, the building at the front is office space.  75 
Ogden: Both decisions refer to it and specific uses that could happen in this building and then uses that 76 
would be within the fenced contractor yard.  77 
Grohol: The 2017 decision notes that the front building will be used as office and/or small business 78 
support storage.  79 
Sheehan McGrath: Another comment – I know there were a lot of concerns for the neighbors on Wharf 80 
Drive when they were proposing to put in homes, they were very tall. I know it’s not a concern now, but I 81 
just want to state it. And another comment – the signs were a little dirty and the green tarp was loose, and 82 
everything looks really nice and neat right now, before this meeting.  83 
Board: We would like time to digest the materials presented this evening.  84 
MOTION: Ligols motions to move the hearing to June 5th. Grohol seconds the motion. Voting aye; 85 
Ligols, Goodwin, Grohol, Naves, Stokes II. The motion passes unanimously in favor. 86 
 87 
MINUTES: Approval of the April 23, 2024, meeting minutes.  88 
MOTION: Ligols motions to accept the minutes. Grohol seconds the motion. Voting aye; Ligols, 89 
Goodwin, Grohol, Naves, Stokes II. The motion passes unanimously in favor.  90 
 91 
TOWN PLANNER UPDATE 92 
Planner: For upcoming projects, the field over on Garrison St, there are people working out there now. 93 
There is a chance that the Board will see an application for affordable 55 and older housing. It would be 94 
through a 40B process, but friendly. 95 



 

 

Page 3 of 3 

May 1, 2024 

Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes 

 

 96 
OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLE ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING 97 
None.  98 
 99 
NEXT MEETING: June 5, 2024 100 
 101 
ADJOURNMENT 102 
MOTION: Goodwin motions to adjourn the meeting at 8:04 PM. Stokes II seconds the motion. Voting 103 
aye; Naves, Goodwin, Grohol, Stokes II. Voted unanimously in favor, the motion passes. 104 
 105 
Respectfully submitted, 106 
Annie Schindler, Town Planner & Conservation Agent 107 



Christopher Goodwin, Chair  

Jason Naves 

John Stokes II 

Brad Ligols 

John Grohol 

 

 

 

 

Town of Groveland       
Zoning Board of Appeals          
183 Main Street        

Groveland, MA 01834       

 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

June 5, 2024 

Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes 

 

 1 
 2 
 3 

 4 
Present: John Grohol, Chris Goodwin, Jason Naves, John Stokes II 5 
Absent: Brad Ligols 6 
Staff Present: Annie Schindler (Town Planner & Conservation Agent) 7 
Public Present: Sarah Sheehan McGrath, Jay Ogden, Bill Daley 8 
 9 
NOTE: Minutes are not a transcript. A video recording of this meeting can be found on the Towns 10 
YouTube page. 11 
 12 
MOTION: Naves motions to open the meeting. Grohol seconds the motion. Voting aye; Grohol, Stokes 13 
II, Goodwin, Naves. The motion passes unanimously. 14 
 15 
PUBLIC HEARING: 16 
NEW: Application #2024-6 441 MAIN STREET (ESTY PARK) – A public hearing in accordance 17 
with General Laws, Chapter 40A, as amended, for Application #2024-6 made by Esty Park Trust, Eric 18 
Harper Trustee, 8 Federal Way, Groveland MA for the premises located at 441 Main Street, Groveland, 19 
Map 24 Lot 9, located in the Residential 2 (R2) Zoning District to modify Special Permit #2014-4 to add 20 
an additional building to the Property. 21 
Goodwin: Reads the above notice. 22 
Ogden: I’m here representing Esty Park Trust. Last time we met you asked how many users were in the 23 
building. There are approximately 30 tenants that fluctuate month to month and use the property in 24 
accordance with the special permit issued by this Board. Mostly for small business storage and support.  25 
Naves: There is a lot of information that makes it confusing. I’m not opposed to the usage, but I think to 26 
make sure we can have comprehensive conditions set, I think it would make sense to have the Planner put 27 
that together to discuss with the applicant. A sort of summary of all the different permits in one, so 28 
moving forward it is clean and concise.  29 
Goodwin: I agree, I don’t think an additional building changes the scope or the intent.  30 
Grohol: I agree I think the building is consist with the other uses of the property. I would be inclined to 31 
approve it, but I would like to make sure we aren’t overlooking anything. 32 
Ogden: That sounds like a reasonable approach.  33 
MOTION: Grohol motions to continue the meeting to July 10th. Naves seconds the motion. Voting aye; 34 
Grohol, Stokes II, Goodwin, Naves. The motion passes unanimously. 35 
 36 
SEWELL STREET: Insubstantial changes to the plan previously approved. These changes include 37 
Relocation of access for the development and associated changes to drainage, and the correction of an 38 
error in the Decision to change the number of bedrooms from 298 to 312.  39 
Daley: We are moving the entrance to the front through Mr. Ryan’s property, and we are going to delete 40 
Nelson St in its entirety. We’re going to do a 30 foot road all the way up to around the bend where it 41 
opens to the main parking lot. And it eliminates the need for Nelson St with that. We submitted a traffic 42 
study, and it makes the line of sight better with the cars parked at Greenwood’s. There is also enough 43 

Board/Committee Name: ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Date: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 PM 

Location: 183 Main Street, Groveland, MA 01834  

APPROVED X-X-2024  



 

 

Page 2 of 2 

April 23, 2024 

Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes 

 

room to see with the entrance at Chesterton. There will be some drainage manholes changes and there is 44 
going to be a small pond at the base of Sewell St.  45 
Naves: My biggest concerns is Sewell St and your driveway and how close together they are.  46 
Daley: I think it is about 75ft, usually they aren’t concerned with anything unless it’s under 50 ft. I can 47 
have my traffic engineer add that to the letter. There is only one property that would be accessing that.  48 
Naves: Has TEC reviewed the traffic report and stormwater yet? 49 
Planner: No, they have not completed it yet. 50 
Naves: Other than that, I think it’s great.  51 
Goodwin: I agree.  52 
Stokes II: So, are you increasing the number of units? 53 
Daley: We aren’t increasing the number of units; we are just clarifying the number of bedrooms. There 54 
were always 312 bedrooms, but this was just a typo in the decision.  55 
MOTION: Naves motions to continue this to the July 10th meeting. Grohol seconds the motion. Voting 56 
aye; Grohol, Stokes II, Goodwin, Naves. The motion passes unanimously. 57 
 58 
MINUTES: Approval of the May 1, 2024, meeting minutes.  59 
Planner: Apologies, I forgot to attach the minutes to the meeting packet, I will send them for the next 60 
meeting.  61 
 62 
TOWN PLANNER UPDATE 63 
Planner: Departments has a Technical Review Conference with a potential buyer of Cederdale. They are 64 
looking to turn it into a youth sports hub. The timeline to be able to do that is ticking because Cedardale is 65 
a non-confirming use in a residential area, and it will lose its non-conforming status in February 2025. We 66 
also had a Technical Review Conference with the development team for 36 Garrison St, they are looking 67 
to provide affordable older adult housing. 68 
 69 
OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLE ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING 70 
None.  71 
 72 
NEXT MEETING: July 10th, 2024 73 
 74 
ADJOURNMENT 75 
MOTION: Goodwin motions to adjourn the meeting at 7:53 PM. Naves seconds the motion. Voting aye; 76 
Naves, Goodwin, Grohol, Stokes II. Voted unanimously in favor, the motion passes. 77 
 78 
Respectfully submitted, 79 
Annie Schindler, Town Planner & Conservation Agent 80 


	240710 Agenda
	441 Main St Application
	441 Main St PB Spec Perm Site Plan Approval
	441 Main St Proposed Plot Plan
	2017-1 441 Main St - Special Permit
	441 Main St - Special Permit DRAFT
	letter from Groveland Realty Trust to ZBA 5-14-24
	Full Site Plan Set 4-12-24
	2024-05-10_New Driveway Traffic Letter (19050)
	T0845.07 Stormwater Review #3
	Groveland - NEF Rental Regulatory Agreement
	Groveland - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	Memo RE Sewell St Acknowledgement
	PEL Application Final (6.4.24) (00290825xBC4F6)
	40B Information
	240501 Minutes - DRAFT
	240605 Minutes - DRAFT



